
 
 
 

Audit and Risk Management Committee 
 
Date: Thursday, 14 June 2012 
Time: 
 

6.15 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Mark Delap 
Tel: 0151 691 8500 
e-mail: markdelap@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or 

prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and, 
if so, to declare them and state what they are. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 13 March 2012. 

 
3. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR  
 
 The Committee is invited to appoint a Vice-Chair for the ensuing 

municipal year. 
 

4. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE (Pages 7 - 24) 
 
5. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 25 - 52) 
 
6. CORPORATE RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT (Pages 53 - 

58) 
 
7. AUDIT COMMISSION - PROGRESS REPORT  
 
 To follow 

 
8. AUDIT COMMISSION PROGRESS REPORT - ACTION AREAS 

(Pages 59 - 64) 
 

Public Document Pack



9. AUDIT COMMISSION - GRANT CLAIMS AND RETURNS REPORT 
(Pages 65 - 82) 

 
10. SUMMARY OF REVIEWS UNDERTAKEN BY AUDIT COMMISSION 

(Pages 83 - 90) 
 
11. SELF ASSESSMENT PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 91 - 100) 
 
12. REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA) - 

QUARTERLY UPDATE (Pages 101 - 104) 
 
13. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 

(PART 1)  
 
14. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE 

PUBLIC  
 
 The public may be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 

the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information. 
 
RECOMMENDATION – That in accordance with section 100A (4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of the following items of business, on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined by the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as 
amended) to that Act. The public interest test has been applied and 
favours exclusion. 
 

15. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 
(PART 2)  

 
 
 



������������	
������������������
�

�������	�
���������
��
�

�������� ���������� ����������������
�
� ����������� �������

�����������
 �!�"������
�

��#�����
��$������
%�&�����'��
�

�
��(������� ����������� ���������%��(������)�*+� ������

�
�
�

,�� ����	�����������������������������	��������	���
�
��'����-�����.��������������-���������������(���������(�/�������� ���������
��������������-�������� ���'������� ������"��������	� �)���	� ���������� ���'�����������
-���������-��0�1�������������������-���'���0�
�

,
� �����	��
�
��������� �� ����� ���� � !"���� �#� ���� ���� !$� ����� �!� %� ��&'"�'(� )*%)+� &��
�,,'����-�
�

,�� �����������		������.����		��.�����
�
������������ ������(�����������(������ ����(�"�����)� ���� �������''������� ���
����2���"��������(�����������������3�������������0������(�����''�������(�������
)��������������'�������������2�����)��'������45��������������������"���"�����.���
�'�"��"� ��������� ������� ���� ��2���('����0� #�� ���� ���� ���� '���� (������ �)� ����
6�2��'������(����������������������������)������)�������(��������������������������
���������"�2��'����������������(���������)����"���������)��(�7��"������2�������������
�(��"���
�0�
�
#��(�2���������(�������� �����3��������������)� ���� �������������������''������
����� ����  ����� ��''������� (�(����� ����� )�� ���� )��� �������� ����� �)� ���� 1����
&���	�&������������	�+�����������������������$���	�����������&���	�����������
-��������������� 2������)�89
0�'������	�-���������-����� ���6������������ �:$��
++��-�����))����)�'�;��������
�0������-�����'�.�����������������''������<���-��
 ����� �������� �)�'���� .��-�� ��� ���� ��������  ����� ��2����0� #�-�2�	� ����
(����'������2�������������������������(�����������.������)��2��=���(������������
�������� -����� ��� �������� ��� ��� ���������� '�.��� ���� �������� -��� -���
����)���"���������������)�����'(������-�������������� ���'����
�0�%����(��������
>��������� )�'���'���	� ������������ ������ ���������� ������)���;��������
�	� ����
��(���'�����)����))�-����������'�����)��6�����������0�#�-�2�	�������������������
��(������-�������"�(������(��������������������������-�.�-��������������.������
������'��"�'���������(������������������(���0� �'�����"�-�������������)��
�����
��
�	����(����)�����)�'����������������(�����	����������2���"���������������������
�))���������������������������0�
�
�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

Page 1



����(�"�����(������������������.��"�����'����)�>���������)��������''���������
�������� ��� ���� )�� ���� ��������� ��� ������� -������ ��� ���� ����2��� ��))�������
�������������'�"��"����������������(���������������>�������)�'��))����0�
�
���������������������"� ������ �� �!�.'�$'������,�'��&��!����-�
�

,�� ���������������������������	����������	��
�
�-� �����������		�����.����
�
������������ ������ (������������������� �(��� ��� �������� ��� ���� ����)��������-�.�
������.��������
�?��

�"��������'������ �����	�-�����-��� ��������� ���(�2����
��������� ��� "���� (����"� ������� ����� ����'�� )�� "����� ���� ����������-���'����
(�(�������������)�'���������)���������������-����������0�#��(�2�����������������)�
����-�.�������.���������''������ ����������'(��������)� ��������)��������-�.���
�(���-��������(�������� ��� ������(��������)�@3�����2�?������� �)�5��������(���
����>����)�������� ��������������)����� �����������������������������2�����-����
���"�'�������������������'(�2��0�
�
#�� (�������� �� ��''��� �)� ���� ��
�?��

� ����)�������� -�.� ������.��� ����
(�2���������'(������-�������A?��
�0�#����"���"�����������"��)����������������������
������)�'�����-�.�������''�������(���(�"����'������������'(��'����������)�
���''���������� ��� ���� (�2������� '���� �����"� )�'� ����)�������� -�.0� ����
������(�����)���)����
�?��

	��������)����������� ������ �����5������������������� (���
��
��-���8
�B	���0�#�-�2�	� ���� ������ )������"���)����������)���������)�
��"����
����'�� ���� ������ ��� ��
�?��

�-����� ��� �((�3�'������ 8
��	���	� -���� ���(�� ���
������ ���� )���� )����� ����"�� �'(�2�'����� ��� ���� ������� ��2���'���	� -�.��"�
(�(�������>���������������0�
�
�-� �.��������/�������������������
�
������(��������)�@3�����2�?��������)�5���������''�������(��������������������
��� ����  ����� ��''������� �(��� ��� �������� ��� ���� ��
�?��

� )��������� ���� ����
�(����� �(��� ��-� ����� ���� ����� ��������0� ����  ����� ��''������� ������ �����
-������ ���� �(������������� ���''�������������������'��������'������	�-���������
�������� ������� (������ ��� ��� �������� ��-���� ���� ��(�������� �))����0������������
�����(�2���������''����)� ��������'�	�-����� ����������'���'�����'������������
)�������"��0�
�
��������������������'�,�'���&��!����-�
�

,9� ���������������.�����
�
���� ����)� %�������  ������ �(����� ����� ��� ���� ��� ������� ��� �))����2�� ��(�����
"�2������� ���� ��� )��)��� ��������� �>���'����	� ���� %�������  ����� �������� �)� ����
5������� ��(��'���� �2��-��� '���"�'���� ���� ��2���� ����2��� ���"�'�����
-���������������������-�������)���������������������'�0�&�.������-������������)��
�2��-� ��� ���� ������ �)� ��.�� ������)���� ��� ���� ��(����� *��.� *�"����� ���� ���
��������� ��� %�������  ����� ��� ������������� -���� ����)� ;))����� ���� ����"��0� #���
�(��� ������)���� ���� �2�������� ���� (�)�'����� �)� ���� %�������  ����� �������� ����
��������� �������� �)� ���� ������� -�.� ������.��� ����"� ���� '�������"� (����0� #��
���"���������������������)���'��������'����)����'���)��������������"�������-�.�
������.��������������������� ������6�2������������'���	��������5���	���������
 ��������������1��������5����%�������2���15%�0�
�

Page 2



���� %�������  ����� ����� )�� ��

?��
�	� �((�2��� ��� ���� ��''������ ��� �B� �����
��

� �'������ BB� �)���	� ������)���� ���� ������� �>����� ��� (�2���� ���� �������� -����
���>����� ��������� �"����"� ���� �))����2������ �)� ���� �����'�� ��� '���"�� ����
'���"���� ������)���� ��.�� ��� ���� �����2�'���� �)� ���� �������<�� ��/����2��0� %�� -���
���������� ����)��� ����� ������ ���'����� �)� ���� ������ (���� ����"���� ��� ��((��� ����
(�2������ �)� ���� C������� ��������� �(�����<� ��� ���� �))����2������ �)� ���� �������<��
������� ��2���'���� ���� ����� ��((��� ���� ����2��� �)� ����  ������ 6�2�������
�����'���� -��� ����2���� �))����2���0� 5����-��"� ���� ������ ��>��������� �)� �����������
���))��"�������	���������)�%������� ������-������)�����������������/����2��-��������
�����2�����������������0�
�
#�� ����� (�2����� ��)�'������ ��� ���� ������� �)� ���''���������� '���� ��� ��������
������ �(���� ����� ���� ����� )����-��� �(� ����"� ���� '�������"� (����	� ���� �����
������)�����������������.����������(�����-�����������������''�����������)�����"��
(������������-��������"��)��������.����������������)����������������))����������������
�)����(���)�����2����������������2������.�����/����2��0�#��(�2��������������������)�
�����������(�������)��������������2���'�������������''����������������)������������
(����������(�����)����������������������������)�������'(�����	�-���������3��(�����
�)�������������)��������-0������������������������)�����((�(�������'��������)������
�'(��'��������� �)� ���''���������� ����� ���� ����� �"���� ��� '���"���� �� �'�2��
-��.������0� *���2���� '���"��� ���� ����� ���������� �"����"� ���� ����� �)�
�2������������(����������(�����)�D�
�
•� !�������4����"����'����������
•� ��-�)�������'����������
•� ��'���� ���-�����	���������)�%���'���+�-?#*? ���
•� !������"���������D�&���������+�-?#*? ���
•� *���(���'�����+ &?#*? ���
•� ��(��'������*��.�����"�'�����+ &?#*? ���
•� ��(��'������*��.�����"�'������ ���
�
%�� ��(����� ��� ��''����� )�'� ���� ����� ��� �������� ��� �������� ������	� ���� ����)�
%������� �������(����������-�.�-�����"���"�-�����������)�"�2����"�������0�#��
���� ����� �������� -���� �))����� )�'� �E��� ��� �3(���� -���� ��((��� '������� )��
�����������������(������(����0�
�
������������
�
0%1� ���������'�,�'��&��!����-�
�
0)1� ����� '�����!����!�$�'��&��  !��'"2���� ����!�"'�� ����� �"� �� �2� �!�.��!��

�'��'��"'!��� !���� ���(���!!�'� !��'��'�����!�"'��2��,� �!2��3 ���� $��
,' �' �(�'�2����!��� �!�-�

�
041� ������!�",�����'�,�'��&��,'���!�����������!�5������ !$��#��������� ����-�
�

,F� ��������������.����)*%)6)*%4��
�
���� ����)� %�������  ������ (�������� ���� ��)�� (���� �)� -�.� )�� &���� �������<��
%������� �������2����)����
�?��
�0�#�-�2�	�������2����-������������������/����
�)�����3�������2��-����������''�����������)����-��"����������'���)��������������
�����>���������"�������������������)�������2���	������������'�������>�����������
'���� ��� ���� (������� ����� �)�-�.0� %�� ��������� ��� ����	� ���� ��� (��� �)� ���� �������
�������(����������'����)�'�����"��-�������������.��"�(�����-��������)�;))�����
���������'���"�'�������'�����������)�����������������'�"��"���.���������)�'�

Page 3



�������������)���.��"�����0������-����������������(����)�����(������"�(���������
�������������.�������/����2�������"������2�������������(����2����2���������-���
������)��������������-�.�(�"�''���)�'������������������������>������)���������
��� ����������0�#�� ���������� ����� �"���� �(������� �����-��������(�������� ��� ����
��''������ ��� ���� �����	� ������)���"� ���� ��������� ����"��� ��� ���� ����� ����� ���
���������0�
�
#�� ��''������ ����� ���� %�������  ����� ����� -��� )������� ��� �2��-��"� ���� ��������
��������� ��������"� ������ ������� ������)�����������)�;))��������� ��� �������3������
�(���	�����������(�2�������������������������)�@3�����2����������+������)�����
�������� -��� -��� /������� �>����� ��� ��"�� ����  ������ 6�2������� �����'���0� ����
������'������������������(���������������)�)787�����������	��)�-�����)947������
-�������((�������(�2�������)����������������������(��������������))����2�������)�
�����������<��������������'���������� ������6�2������������'���0�
�
%����(����������>��������)�'�����'���������-���������������������.�-�.����
������ �����(����������������-��� �'(��'�����	� ��������)� %������� ������ ����������
����� ��'(������� ������"�-������������� ������ ���� �������� ��������� ����� �������
��2���'���������(��������-������(����0�
�
��������� �� ����� ���� '�,�'�� &�� !����� �!�� ���� �!��'!��� �"� �� �!!"��� .��!�
)*%)6)*%4�&���!��'���-�
�

,,� ���������:������	�������)*%%6)*%)��
�
������(��������)�@3�����2�?��������)�5�������(�������� ���� ������6�2�������
�����'���� ��

?��
�� ���� �(����� ����� ���� (�(������� ���� (����������� -���
��������� ��� '���� )����� ���� ��������� �>���'���� ���� ���� ��� *�"�������� 9� �)� ����
 ������������ �����*�"����������������'���������,�������

�0�
�
�����%�5 ?�;+ �@�����2���"�6����6�2����������+�����6�2��'����5�'�-�.�
������� �����"�2�������-�����������-� ���� ��������������� ����� ���-�������"� ����
�"�������"�	���������"���-��	�)�������"���(��(��	��������'���	��������2�	��(��	��������
���� ������������ '����0� %�� ��'(����� ���� �����'�	� (�������� ���� �������	� ����
������������2�����	����-��������� ��������-���������������������������������"��
-��������������������	���"�"���-���	����	�-�����((�(���������������''�����0�����
������� �)���� ��� ���� ��3� ���� (����(���� �)� "���� "�2������� ���� ���� ��� ����
5�'�-�.� ���� ��� ��"���"����� ���� �3�����"	� -���� ������������ (������ -������ ����
�������� )�� ���� �2��-� �)� ���� ������� �����'� ���� ���� (�(������� �)� ����  ������
6�2������������'���0�
�
���������'�����)�������������

?��
��)����������������	����/�����������'�������
����"�������������������2���'����������(�����"�2����������"�'����	�-�����
������(��������������"������� ����+������)� ���������������� ��������)�@3�����2�0�
 ����'���'�����-���������(���������������''�����������(��'�����
��)����-��"�
������'(��������)������������)����������������

?��
�0�
�
���������������������!!"�������'!�!2��	������!��)*%%6)*%)�&���!��'�����!��
�,,�!�����������	������!���#��22�"!���)*%%6)*%)-�
�

,=� 	����				�����
�
��������)�%������� �������(���������������'(���-���������(�)���������(�����������
 ����� ���� *��.� ����"�'���� ��''������ -��� �>����� ��� ��'(����� ��� �������
�2����������)� �������������))����2���������(����)� ���������'���)� �������������0�����

Page 4



�%�5 �(�����������C �����.���)��+����� �������� �������''������<����''����������
�����)������)�������'��������.�������������2���������.0�������������������������������
����	�������/��������-�����������	�������'(��������������.�����-�����-����((������
��� ���� �(��0� #�� ����� (�������� �� ��)��  ������ ����� ����� ���� ����� ��2���(���
)����-��"� ���� �3�����	� -����� ���������� ���''���������� ��� �'(�2�� ���� �3�����"�
���"�'����� ���� ��� ������� ���� ��.�0� %'(��'��������� -����� ��� '�������� ���
%������� ����� ��������(����� �(���-��������(�������� ����� )�����'�����"��)� ����
��''�����0�
�
������������ �������)��������������''���������)��������''��������������������
(�)�'����� �)� �3������ ������ ���� ���������� ���� -�����"����� ��� (�2���� �����
��������������������''���������'�����������0�
�
������������
�
0%1� ������������#���������!��2��2;� ����!�������'�#���2� �!�,��!�&���,,'����-�
�
0)1� ����� � � ��!� &�� "!��'��;�!� 3 ��� �� �#� �## 2�'�� ��� �!�"'�� ���� �##�2� ���

��� ��'(��#������2� �!�.��!��!����,'�$'����'�,�'��&��,'���!�����������!�5��
���� !$��#��������� ����-�

�
041� ����+� #�'� ���� #�'��2�� !$� �"! 2 ,��� (��'+� �� �; ���� ��������!�� &��

"!��'��;�!� #�'� ���&�'�� �#� ���� �"� �� �!�� � �;� ��!�$���!�� ���� �����
�!�� �!� �,,'�,' ���� �'� ! !$� ,'�$'����� &�� ,"��  !� ,��2�� #�'� ���� �����
���&�'���!����,"� ��-�

�
091� ����������## 2�'��&��'�<"����������!�"'�����������,�,�'3�';�#�'� !2�"� �!�

 !� ���� ����� �$�!����  �� ��� ��&��� #�'� ,"&� 2�� �!� �!�� � �,��2�� ��� ������
�3���' ��(��&�#�'����2������ !$-�

�
,B� ��������.�����

�
��������)�%������� �������(���������������'(���-���������(�)���������(�����������
 ���������*��.�����"�'������''������-����>����������'(����������������(���
����������������������-�.��������������.��0�#��(������������)�� ������*�(���)��
��

?��
�	�-��������������(�(��������������������������������-����%������� ����	�
���� ��� ���������� -���� ���� �%�5 � ����� (������� (����������� C � ����.��� )�� +�����
 ��������  ����� ��''������<0� ���� �(��� ��'��������� ��-� ���� ��''������ ����
)��)������ ���� ��'�� �)� �)������ ����"� �� 2��� ��))������ ���� ���� ��-� ��� -��� )�����
��''������������(��"�����'(�2�������������<��"�2��������������������2���'�����
����"�-����-����3(��������������2����������"��"����������	�)����-��"�����������
(����������� �)� �3������ �(���� ��"���� �������� �)� ���� ��������� "�2�������
���"�'����0�
�
*�)������-���'��������������������"�����2����2��2�'�����)������������� ���������2���
��-� �)�'� (�����0� ���� ��''������ -��� ��2����� ����� ���� �-�� ������ �3������
��������� �(��� ��''��������� ��� �2��-� ���� ��'� �>����� ��� )���� ���������� ����'��
-������������'�����)��������)7�����������������-�����������"�������������������0�
�
��������� �� ����� ���� �'�#�� �"� �� �!�� � �;� ��!�$���!�� ���� ����� �!!"���
��,�'��)*%%6)*%)�&���,,'������!��'�#�''������������& !��-�
�
�
�
�

Page 5



,A� ���.�������	
�������	����������������
�
���� ������� �)� 5������� �(����� �(��� (�"���� '���� �"������ ���� ��/����2��� )��
��(����� ��.� ���� ��������� '���"�'���� ���� ��"���"����� ���� ������(�����
��2���('��������������'��"�'�����0�
�
��������������������'�,�'��&��!����-�
�

=�� ���.�������	
����	����
�
������������)�5��������(������(�������(������)����-��������������"����� �������
����������-������������)����(�����*��.�*�"�����-��������������(���������������
�����������
��;��������

��'������
F���)���0�#����''�����������������(�����
*��.�*�"�����-�����.������'�����)� ����*��.�����"�'���������"�0� %����''������
������ ����� �)� ����������� -����� ���� "������� (��������� ��� (�2���� �� )�������
����2����)�������(����������������-����� ��������-������.��"�������.������'0�%��
���� ������ �������� ��)�������� ���� �������� �)� ��(��'������ ��2���� ������ ���� ����
����������� �)� �������� ���	� ��� ����	� -��� �������� ���"���� -���� ���� ��(�����
�������"�(�����0������>������	������������'���"��"���������.��-�����.���)�����
��� �2����� (�)�'����0� ���� ������� (�������� ���� )����� (�(������� ����'���� ����
�(����� ����	� -������ ��� ���� ����� �"���� ��� ���� �������� ��� �� 5������ ��
��
�'������ �==� �)���	� ��� -����� ��� ���.��� ��� �"���� ��� (��� �)� ���� -�.� �)� ����
%'(�2�'����!���0�
�
����������������������',�'����� �;���$ ���'�&���!��'���-�
�

=
� ����	�����������
�
���� ������� �)� 5������� �(����� ����� ���� �%�5 � "�������� C ����� ��''������� D�
���������6��������)��+����� ���������<����''�����������������'�����)���� �����
��''������ ������� ����2�� �(���)��� ������"� ��� ����� ���� ���� ��(������������� ���
��'���� �)� ����� ��''�����0� #�� ��''������ ����� ������ ���,� ���� ������"�
�>���'����� ���� ����� ��'(������2���� �����2��� ��� '���'�'� ����� ��� ����
�((����'�����)� ����$����-�.�	�-���-��������)�����'�'�����)�����-�.��"�(����
�����-���� �����%�5 � "�������0� ���� ������"� ������ ���� (�2������� ����� ��((�����
�2���-����������������������)�8�F������	������������������2��-��������'�����)�
������''���������2������)��0�
�
���������������������5 �� !$��'� !�'+��!!��
��!�3�; +�&��'��� !���#�'����&�'��
�'� ! !$� !�)*%)6)*%4+�����# '����'� ! !$����� �!����&���''�!$�����'�(� !�����!�3�
�"! 2 ,��� (��'+� &�#�'�� ���� # '��� �2���"�������� !$� �#� ���� ���� �����  !� ="!��
)*%)-�
�
�
� � �
�

Page 6



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

14 JUNE 2012 

SUBJECT: INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

COUNCILLOR ADRIAN JONES 

KEY DECISION ? NO 
 

1.0  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 In order to assist in effective corporate governance and fulfil statutory 
requirements, the Internal Audit Section of the Finance Department reviews 
management and service delivery arrangements within the Council as well as 
financial control systems. Work areas are selected for review on the basis of 
risks identified on the Corporate Risk Register and as assessed by Internal 
Audit in consultation with Chief Officers and Managers.  

 
1.2. This report identifies and evaluates the performance of the Internal Audit 

Section and includes details of the actual work undertaken during the period. 
There are a number of items of note concerning audit work undertaken that 
are brought to the attention of the Members for this period and these are 
identified at Section 2.7. 

 
1.3. The Internal Audit Plan for 2012/13 was approved by this Committee at its 

meeting in March 2012. 
 
1.4. The Internal Audit Plan identifies all audits required to provide the Council 

with adequate assurance regarding the effectiveness of its systems to 
manage and mitigate identified risks to the achievement of the Council’s 
objectives. It is essential therefore that those elements of the audit plan 
designed to support the provision of the ‘annual assurance opinion’ on the 
effectiveness of the Council’s control environment and also support the 
delivery of the Annual Governance Statement are delivered effectively.  

 
2.0  BACKGROUND AND AUDIT OUTPUT 

2.1. This report summarises the audit work completed during the period 1st March 
2012 to 31st May 2012. The specific nature of the work that has been 
undertaken or is currently ongoing is identified in Appendix I. 42 audits were 
undertaken during this period identifying 50 high priority recommendations to 
address risks and improve systems in operation across the Council. 
Management has agreed to implement all of the recommendations made 
within a satisfactory timescale and follow up audits are scheduled to monitor 
progress. Those reports identifying high priority recommendations are 
analysed in more detail in section 2.6 of this report. 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



2.2. The Service constantly evaluates the effectiveness of its performance 
including a number of performance indicators in key areas that includes the 
provision of sufficient resource to deliver the annual Internal Audit Plan and 
ensuring that all of the audits identified in the plan are delivered on schedule. 
This is particularly important at the present time as the requirement for 
Internal Audit involvement in a number of important corporate initiatives has 
increased dramatically.  

 
2.3. Due to significant shortfalls in staffing resource experienced during 2011/12 

and the resulting problems that this caused regarding delivery of the audit 
plan this situation will continue to be monitored and reported to Members, the 
Chief Executive and the Section 151 Officer for appropriate remedial actions 
to be taken. 

 
2.5. Follow Up Audits 
 
 The table attached at Appendix 2 identifies the status of those 

recommendations made in internal audit reports that have been followed up 
during the period: 

 
2.6 Audits Identifying High Priority Recommendations 
 
(a) The table at Appendix 3 identifies audits undertaken over the period which 

include recommendations of a high priority nature where a significant risk 
has been identified that might affect the ability of a specific service area to 
achieve it’s key objectives. The table also indicates the audit opinion provided 
on the effectiveness of the control environment, where 4* indicates an 
excellent rating and 1* poor.  Actual recommendations are identified where 
the audit opinion provided is 1*: 

 
(b) All of the action plans in respect of the audits identified have been returned 

fully completed. These all identify appropriate timescales for the 
implementation of recommendations agreed to mitigate or remove 
weaknesses. 
 

2.7. Items of Note 

(a) Counter Fraud  
 
 Following the enforced absence of the two members of staff from the Counter 

Fraud Team and their subsequent short term replacement with a number of 
temporary appointments, work in this area is progressing well. A number of 
proactive audits designed to detect any fraudulent activity across a number of 
systems have been completed in the following areas: 

 
 Payroll – Ghost Employees 
 Credit Cards 
 Corporate Travel 
  
 
 
 

Page 8



 In addition to this, the team has been busy delivering the counter fraud 
message across the Council through the development of various training tools 
and face to face sessions including the delivery of a new Money Laundering 
presentation to over three hundred front line staff. Feedback has so far been 
excellent with over 84% of recipients indicating that the sessions had 
exceeded expectations, raising awareness of this potential risk and how to 
report any concerns. 

 
 The team is currently providing professional input to six investigations that are 

currently ongoing across the Authority. 
 
 Work has also been completed to update the Fraud Risk Evaluation 

Diagnostic provided by CIPFA and designed to evaluate and test the 
effectiveness of the Council’s existing arrangements for the prevention of 
fraud and the organisations appetite for fraud prevention. The results of this 
exercise indicate that a significant amount of work has been undertaken since 
the previous exercise and the Council now has many areas of good practice 
in operation that complies with current best professional practice. However, a 
number of areas are identified where further work is required and a number of 
assignments have been included in the Counter Fraud audit plan to assist 
officers in improving arrangements in these areas. In some cases, it is 
acknowledged that work has already begun and the outcome of this will be 
reported to this Committee in due course:  

 
• Further publicising the Whistleblowing Policy; 
• Developing a more holistic approach to fraud investigation across the 
 authority; 
• Quantifying losses to fraud and corruption on a council-wide basis; 
• Ensuring investigating officers have the necessary authority to obtain 
 information; 
• Provision of a corporate code of ethics for all investigating officers; 
• Creating a central point for receipt and recording of all investigation 
 reports to help identify council-wide weaknesses;  
• Removing any ambiguity and contradictions from key policies; 
• Applying a consistent approach to sanctions, prosecution and police 
 referrals across the council. 

  
(b) Court of Protection 
 

An audit is currently being undertaken of the Court of Protection system to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the controls in operation. This is the system 
whereby the Director of Adult Social Services has responsibility for the 
management of the finances of an adult who lacks the capacity to manage 
their own affairs and has no other person to assist.  A meeting was held with 
the Director of Adult Social Services to alert him of the emerging findings 
ahead of the production of the report on account of their being significant 
issues identified. It is anticipated that the opinion on the control environment 
will be a 1 * rating with potentially 18 high priority recommendations, based 
upon the findings at this moment in time. Issues currently identified include 
the following: 
 

Page 9



• A lack of any documented procedures or consistent way of working, so 
that there is no assurance that the requirements of the Office of the 
Public Guardian (the government body who oversees such cases) are 
being met;  

• A lack of adequate control over the clients' bank accounts held and the 
payments made;  

• Potential care implications of closing the case to social workers once 
COP status is assigned. 

The Directors response has been very positive, and there are indications that 
some urgent actions have already been taken to address identified 
weaknesses. 
  
The report is due to be finalised later this month and will include more 
detailed information relating to the audit and the findings; an action plan will 
be included identifying all of the recommendations and the timescale for 
implementation. Members of this Committee will continue to be kept informed 
of the progress being made by the department to address these issues. 

 
(c) Procurement of Commissioned Care 
 
 Work has recently been undertaken to review systems in operation over the 
 procurement of commissioned care by DASS. The review focussed upon the 
 compilation and update of lists of care providers, the responsibilities within the 
 decision-making process in allocating care packages, and ongoing liaison and 
 monitoring of the quality of care provided. The exercise also involved us 
 testing a sample of payments, contracts, and monitoring frameworks. The 
 audit  report identified a number of areas of significant weakness in control 
 and  included five high priority recommendations to address these issues; 
 these have been agreed with management and are identified at Appendix 2. 
 Internal Audit will be undertaking follow up work in July of this year to 
 evaluate progress made and any issues identified will be reported to 
 Chief Officers and  Members at the next meeting of this Committee. 
 
(d) Children In Need 
 
 An audit is currently being completed of the system in operation within CYPD 
 for utilising the petty cash system to provide cash payments to children 
 (parents/guardian) in exceptional circumstances.  This service is provided in  
 law under s17 of the Children Act 1989. 
  
 The findings of the review indicated that there are fundamental weaknesses 
 within the existing system in operation and a 1* opinion on the 
 effectiveness of the control environment has been provided in a report to the 
 Chief Officer that also identifies seven high priority recommendations 
 covering  all aspects of basic financial procedures. An action plan and 
 implementation timetable in respect of these has been agreed and follow up 
 work has been scheduled to evaluate progress made. Chief Officers and 
 Members of this Committee will be notified in due course of the findings of 
 this work. The actual recommendations are identified at Appendix 2 to this 
 report. 

Page 10



 
 
3.0  RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 Appropriate actions are not taken by officers and Members in response to the 
identification of risks to the achievement of the Council’s objectives. 

 
3.2 Potential failure of the Audit and Risk Management Committee to comply with 

best professional practice and thereby not function in an efficient and effective 
manner. 

 
4.0  OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options considered. 
 
5.0  CONSULTATION 

5.1 Members of this Committee are consulted throughout the process of 
delivering the Internal Audit Plan and the content of this regular routine report. 

 

6.0  IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
7.0  RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
8.0  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to 
equality? 

 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 

10.0  CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
11.0  PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0  RECOMMENDATION 

12.1.  That the report be noted and appropriate action be taken by the Members as 
 deemed necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



13.0  REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

13.1 To provide the Members with assurance that the Council is taking appropriate 
measures to comply with statutory requirements to provide an adequate and 
effective internal audit service. 

 
13.2 To ensure that risks to the Council are managed effectively. 
 
13.3 To ensure that the Council complies with best practice guidance identified in 

the CIPFA publication ‘A Toolkit for Local Authority Audit Committees’. 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Mark P Niblock 
  Deputy Chief Internal Auditor 
  telephone:  0151 666 3432 
  email:   markniblock@wirral.gov.uk  
 
APPENDICES 

Appendix 1: Internal Audit Work Conducted/Ongoing – March to May 2012 
Appendix 2: Follow Up of Audit Recommendations Status 
Appendix 3: Audits Identifying High Priority Recommendations 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 
Internal Audit Plan 2011/12 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

 

Council Meeting  Date 

Audit and Risk Management Committee  

 

Routine report presented 

to all meetings of this 

Committee. 

 

Page 12



APPENDIX I 
 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2011/12 and 2012/13 
 
WORK CONDUCTED/ONGOING – MARCH TO MAY 2012 
 
 
1. SYSTEMS 
 
 (a) Finance        -  Housing Benefits Write Offs 
     -  Housing Benefits PO Payouts 

-  NNDR Write Offs 
-  Banking Contract 
-  Risk Management 
-  Pensions – Contributions 
 

 (b) Law, HR and Asset    -  Corporate Governance 
 Management  -  Payroll 
   -  Registrars 
   -  Risk Management 
   -  Compromise Agreements 
   -  Members Allowances/Expenses 
          

 (c) Children & Young People  -  Governance 
    -  Children in Need Assessments 
    -  Financial Assessments 
    -  Metro Catering 
    -  Risk Management 
    -  Schools Bursar Support   

  
           

(d) Technical Services  -  Cultural Services Establishments 
   -  Payments (COLAS) 
   -  Risk Management 
   -  Governance 
    

 (e) Adult Social Services -  Procurement of Commissioned Care 
   -  Financial Protection 
   -  Governance 
   -  Swift Replacement 
   -  Risk Management 
 
 (f) Regeneration Housing -  Grants 
   -  Governance 
   -  Risk Management 
   -  Vehicle Fleet Management 

-  European Social Fund 
 
 
 

Page 13



 
 (g) Corporate Systems -  Annual Governance Statement 

-  National Fraud Initiative 
-  Performance Indicators 
-  Contracts Completion 
-  Conflict Declarations 
-  Gifts and Hospitality 
-  Constitution 
-  Corporate Contracts 
-  Risk Management 
-  Controlled Stationary 

 
2. SCHOOLS 

 
(a) Thematic Reviews - Financial Systems 
(b) Full Reviews – Primary Schools 

 
3. ICT 
 
 (a) Social Networking 
 (b) Webmail 
 (c) HR Self Service 
 (d) Removable Media 
 (e) Mobile Phones 

  
4. ANTI-FRAUD 
 
 (a) National Fraud Initiative  
 (b) Counter Fraud Awareness exercise 
 (c) Corporate Credit Cards  
 (d) Members Expenses 
 (e) Overseas Travel 
 (f) Car Hire 
  
5. INVESTIGATIONS 
  
 The service is currently providing support and input to seven active cases. 
  
6. OTHER 
 

(a) Final Accounts 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



                 Appendix 2 
 

FOLLOW UP OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – STATUS 
 
 
Audit name Dates Opinion Recommendations Status 
 Original  

report 
Issue date  

Follow-up  
date 

 High Med Low  

 
Cashiers - Establishment 

Bankings 

 
09/11 

 
02/12 
 

 
3* 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
2 

 
All implemented  
 

 
Payroll Control & 
Compliance 
 

 
11/11 

 
4/12 

 
3* 

 
0 

 
1 

 
1 

 
All implemented  
 

 
Removable Media 
 

 
05/11 

 
11/11  
04/12 

 
1* 

 
5 

 
4 

 
0 

 
4 High priority recommendations are outstanding however we 
are aware that this issue was discussed at the Information 
Strategy Group (ISG) on 19th April 2102, where it was agreed 
that an action plan to implement the outstanding 
recommendations would be circulated to ISG for agreement, 
whilst acknowledging that: 
 

• Access to USB ports will be restricted, via the McAfee 
solution, and enabled on a case by case basis when 
authorised following a business case. 

• Communication to staff is key. A global email will be 
circulated identifying key stages and dates and what 
is required of staff. 

 
The outstanding Recs are: 
 
1. A Corporate Risk Assessment should be performed, by an 
appropriate senior corporate group, to identify business 
areas in which the use of removable media is appropriate 
or should not be allowed.  Identified risks should be 
recorded in the developing ICT Risk Register.  

P
age 15



 
2. Consideration should be given to: 
 
a)  Disabling the use of USB ports for unauthorised devices 
 
b) Developing a procedure for enabling USB ports where a    
legitimate business case exists. 

   
As a total prohibition may have a negative impact on service 
delivery, for example where there is a legitimate requirement 
to upload digital photographs in Technical Services, it is 
recommended that effort is targeted in high risk areas as 
identified in 1.   
 
It is acknowledged that significant costs may be incurred in 
"locking down" all desktop / laptop configurations.  The risks, 
costs and benefits should be considered by ISG. 
 
3. The iProcurement catalogue should be updated to include 
only media which conform to Authority standards for 
encryption. 

 
4. Guidance should be given on the secure use of USB Flash 
Drives, such as how to enable and configure security 
options.  Guidance should also state how devices are to be 
labelled, if at all, to reduce their attractiveness to 
unauthorised users. 

 
 
Mobile Phone Usage 
 

 
09/11 

 
04/12 

 
1* 

 
5 

 
2 

 
0 

 
All recommendations remain outstanding however we 
understand that action is currently being undertaken by 
officers to address these issues by: 
 
• Determining a new policy (which is with HR to progress), 
• Identifying officers who currently have a mobile phone, and 
recording this on an asset register.  

• Introducing a reduced ability to order different types of 
phones in a more controlled environment via iProcurement. 

P
age 16



• Allowing private phone calls to be made, subject to an 
automated recharge in relation to the cost of the calls. 

 
Outstanding recommendations: 
 
1. The Mobile Phone Policy should be subject to a joint review 
by the Department of Law, HR and Asset Management and 
the Department of Finance with all further findings and 
recommendations made in this report considered for 
appropriate inclusion.  It is recommended that the policy is 
owned by Human Resources as a corporate policy. 

 
2. Internal Audit maintains that centralising the processes for 
managing the Authority’s mobile phone system would 
provide greater control than the current decentralised 
arrangements.  However, if this can not be implemented 
due to factors such as resource implications, it is then 
recommended that Human Resources: 

 
i. Utilise the HR system as a repository for maintaining 
records of all employees that have been issued a mobile 
phone, including defining a process to ensure that these 
records are updated accordingly; 
 
ii. Consider if pre-determined roles that require mobile 
phone technology can be identified, in collaboration with 
Council Chief Officers, and included within appropriate HR 
systems; 

iii. Develop a business case template for employees 
requesting a mobile phone; and 

 
iv. Establish a process for the transfer of mobile phones 
between employees or suspending/removing devices from 
the supplier's contract. 

 
3. To ensure the Council is not continuing to pay for 
unused/unauthorised mobile phones, the Finance 
Department should provide Chief Officers with a list of all 

P
age 17



unknown mobile numbers in order for them to be identified.  
Action should then be taken to suspend/cancel appropriate 
mobile phone lines as appropriate. 

 
4. A procurement group should be established, consisting of 
representation from IT Services and Corporate 
Procurement, to review the use of high end mobile phones 
in the Council.  The procurement group should establish:  

 
i. The specification and selection of suitable handsets that 
are based on cost, technology infrastructure and user 
needs that should be included in the future contract tender 
documentation; 
 
ii. The compliance requirements in respect to Government 
Connect Code of Compliance (CoCo) for any mobile phone 
deemed appropriate for use by the Council; and 
 
iii Whether any approved mobile phones and dongles can 
be classified as catalogue items on the i-Procurement 
system instead of going through the non-catalogue route 
process to provide greater control. 

 
5. IT Services, in consultation with the Payments Manager, 
should identify the required information that should be 
collected at the point of order for all mobile phones to 
ensure electronic billing can be utilised efficiently and 
effectively and expenditure can be coded to the correct cost 
centre.  Additionally, it should be ensured that all mobile 
phone orders are included as part of the electronic billing 
process. 

 
Orretts Meadow Primary 
School - Payroll and 
Personnel systems. 
 

 
11/11 

 
04/12 

 
3* 

 
2 

 
1 

 
2 

 
All implemented 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
age 18



Registrars 
 

07/11 04/12 1* 10 0 0 5 recs were partially implemented, 3 not implemented: 
 
1.  i.  A regular independent check should take place of the    

payroll summary sheet to the wedding diary and be 
evidenced with a signature and date. 

 
 ii. The system for recording details of all ceremonies 
should be reviewed to show all information clearly. 

 
2.  A review of the collection, recording and banking of all 
income should take place to include a separation of duties 
and evidence to confirm.  These procedures should be 
documented and included in the procedures manual. 

 
3.  An independent check should take place of the record of 
certificates issued or spoilt by the Registrars who work 
independently.  This should be evidenced with a date and 
signature. 

 
 
St Annes Primary School 
Creditors 
 

 
11/11 

 
04/12 

 
3* 

 
1 

 
1 

 
0 

 
All implemented 

 
European Social Fund 
 

 
11/11 

 
04/12 

 
3* 

 
0 

 
2 

 
0 

 
All implemented 

 
St Georges Primary 
School: Dragon Club 
 

 
08/11 

 
04/12 

 
1* 

 
10 

 
10 

 
14 

 
7 currently outstanding although remain within the 
implementation timetable agreed.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 19



                 Appendix 3 
Audits Identifying High Priority Recommendations 
 

 The following table identifies audits undertaken over the period which include recommendations of a high priority nature where 
a significant risk has been identified that might affect the ability of a specific service area to achieve it’s key objectives. The table 
also indicates the audit opinion provided on the effectiveness of the control environment, where 4* indicates an excellent rating 
and 1* poor.  Actual recommendations are identified where the audit opinion provided is 1*: 

 
 

Audit 
 
 

Total Recs 
Agreed 
(H) 

Recs Not  
Agreed 

Audit 
Opinion 
Provided 

High Priority Recommendations 

 
Controlled Stationery 
 

 
5(1) 

 
- 

 
2* 

 
Procedures for the administration of controlled stationery should be 
formally documented and be available for reference. The procedures 
should incorporate assigned responsibilities and ordering policies 
etc. 
 

 
Hillside Primary School 
 
 

 
7(2) 

 
- 

 
3* 

 
1.  The school's procurement procedures should be adhered to all 
times specifically around the authorisation of payments. 
 
2.  To ensure an effective separation of duties, the Scheme of 
Delegation and the Authorised Signatory List should be reviewed 
and amended to ensure all staff on the Authorised Signatory List is 
allocated a delegated limit in their own right. 
 

 
Vehicle Fleet Management 
 
 

 
7(1) 

 
- 

 
3 

 
Procedures for the acquisition of vehicles, maintenance of vehicles 
and the calculation of recharges and submission of journals should 
be documented, approved and made available to all appropriate 
officers.  These procedures should be kept up to date to reflect any 
changes that are made. 
 

 
Risk Management Framework 
 
 

 
2(2) 

 
- 

 
2* 

 
1.  The Executive Team and all senior management should be fully 
communicated with to ensure full support for the Risk Management 
approach. 

P
age 20



 
 
2.  The Risk Management Module should be included within the 
project management system. 
 

 
DASS Procurement Of Commissioned Care 
 
 

 
5(5) 

 
- 

 
2* 

 
1.  Risk assessment methodology should be devised for visits to 
Care Homes and Care Providers. 
 
2.  Sub analysis codes should be reviewed. 
 
3.  A Clear evidence trail as to why a specific provider has been 
selected should be maintained at all times.   
 
4.  Formalised links with other Councils regarding satisfaction of 
care provided to the client should be developed. 
 
5.  Clearly evidenced links with the Care Quality Commission should 
be maintained at all times.          
 

 
Financial Assessments – Personal Finance 
Unit 
 
 

 
4(1) 

 
- 

 
2* 

 
To improve data quality and ensure that a consistent approach is 
applied to the calculation of financial assessments, management 
checks should be undertaken and used to: 
 
•    Quantify the results from the checks; consider the reasons for 
errors and the impact, 

•    Monitor performance over time, 
•    Identify and implement appropriate training and other corrective 
action. 

 
 
Children in Need Payments 
 
 

 
9(7) 

 
- 

 
1* 

1. Comprehensive review of procedures and ensure all locality 
offices comply with these. 

2.  A receipt should be obtained and held on file for the total value of 
the payment issued. If a receipt has not been obtained the reason 

P
age 21



should be documented appropriately. 

2.i.    All PB11A forms should be authorised and dated before a       
        payment is issued.  
2.ii   Head of Branch (HOB) documents should be completed 

appropriately including the name of the approving officer. 
2iii    The procedures should be updated to include the level above 

which a HOB should be obtained. All localities should adhere to 
the correct procedure for HOB approval. 

2iv    Access, alteration and approval of the HOB document should 
be limited to authorised staff. 

3.    The parent/carer should sign and date the PB11A form to    
confirm a payment has been received. 

4.    Emergency cash payments should be monitored and action 
taken as appropriate Evidence of monitoring should be held on file to 
confirm. Consideration should be given to allocating a separate code 
for emergency cash payments 

5.    Cash should be held in a safe which is locked unless access is 
required. Access should be limited to authorised staff. Consideration 
should be given to reducing the number of staff authorised to issue 
payments. 

6.    The Planning and Resources Branch should liaise with the 
Accountancy Section to discuss updating the annual petty cash 
return document to ensure that it includes the requirement to record 
the bank balance. Furthermore, the £272.72 interest identified as the 
variance for one locality should be clarified as to what action should 
be taken. 

7.     The discrepancy highlighted on the petty cash return for one 
locality should be investigated and resolved. Internal audit should be 
informed of the outcome.  

 

P
age 22



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Calday Grange Grammar School 
 

 
8(6) 

 
- 

 
1* 

 

• Review, update and approval of authorised signatories  
• Review and approval of limits of delegated authority  
• Review, update and approval of Financial Procedures 
Manual to reflect current activities  

• Clear separation of duties in the lettings system  
• Raising of orders prior to the service or supply of goods.  
• Review and increased clarity of school's financial 
regulations, covering levels for verbal and written quotations 

 
 
Brackenwood Junior School 
 

 
15(14) 

 
- 

 
1* 

 

• Updating of Financial Procedures Manual to include all 
areas  

• Opportunity to make a Declaration of interest at all 
Committee meetings  

• Separation of duties re payroll, debtors and creditors  
• Data Protection registration document update  
• Prepare inventory  
• Petty cash balancing and reconciliation  
• Payroll documents checking and authorisation  
• Level for obtaining verbal quotes should be set and 
approved  

• Review of authorised signatory list and delegated limits  
• Use of non order system for items other than utilities  
• Charge policy production and approval  
• Receipting  
• Meals income recording, reconciliation and review  
• Key holding  
• Licence agreement for letting of school premises. 

 

P
age 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

14 JUNE 2012 

SUBJECT: INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

COUNCILLOR ADRIAN JONES 

KEY DECISION ? NO 
 
1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Internal Audit Section of the Finance Department plans and completes 

audits to review all relevant areas of risk. 
 
1.2 Reports, including recommendations produced following audits are presented 

to managers. An overall report is produced annually. 
 
1.3 This report presents the Annual Audit Report for 2011/12. 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations require that a local authority “shall 

maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit”. 
 
2.2 In order to meet the statutory requirements the Internal Audit Section has 

conducted audits to review the operation of the internal control systems. The 
work has been conducted in accordance with professional standards set by 
the Audit Practices Board, CIPFA and the Chartered Institute of Internal 
Auditors. 

 
2.3 The attached Internal Audit Annual Report specifies the Internal Audit 
 assurance opinion on key areas of the Council’s activity for 2011/12. 
 
2.4 The audits conducted during the year were principally planned to review the  

financial control systems in compliance with the requirements of the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations. However significant attention was also paid to key 
risks in the following areas: 
 
Performance Management, 
Anti Fraud and Corruption 
Corporate Governance, 
Risk Management,  
ICT Systems, 
Service Delivery. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 25



 
2.5 The Audit Plan was compiled on a risk assessment basis that included 
 consideration of the sensitivity and complexity of all risks identified. Client 
 requests, systems being developed and the availability of resources were also 
 other factors also taken into account during the yea. 
 
2.6  The Internal Audit Plan for 2011/12 was approved by this Committee in March 

2011. 
 
3.0  RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 Appropriate actions are not taken by officers and Members in response to the 
identification of risks to the achievement of the Council’s objectives. 

 
3.2 Potential failure of the Audit and Risk Management Committee to comply with 

best professional practice and thereby not function in an efficient and effective 
manner. 

 
4.0  OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options considered. 
 
5.0  CONSULTATION 

5.1 Members of this Committee are consulted throughout the process of 
delivering the Internal Audit Annual Report. 

 

6.0  IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
7.0  RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
8.0  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to 
equality? 

 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 

10.0  CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
11.0  PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

Page 26



12.0  RECOMMENDATION 

12.1.  That the report be noted and appropriate action be taken by the Members as 
 deemed necessary. 
 
13.0  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

13.1 To provide the Members with assurance that the Council is taking appropriate 
measures to comply with statutory requirements to provide an adequate and 
effective internal audit service. 

 
13.2 To ensure that risks to the Council are managed effectively. 
 
13.3 To ensure that the Council complies with best practice guidance identified in 

the CIPFA publication ‘A Toolkit for Local Authority Audit Committees’. 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Mark P Niblock 
  Deputy Chief Internal Auditor 
  telephone:  0151 666 3432 
  email:   markniblock@wirral.gov.uk  
 
APPENDICES 

Appendix 1: Internal Audit Annual Plan 2011/12 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

Internal Audit Plan 2011/12 
CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit 
 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

 

Council Meeting  Date 

Audit and Risk Management Committee  

 

Annual report presented 

to June meetings of this 

Committee every year. 

 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 
 

 
 

Wirral Council 
Internal Audit Service 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annual Internal Audit Report  
2011/2012 

 
 
 
 

May 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 29



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual Internal Audit report for the year ended 31 March 2011  
 

 

  

Contents 
 

Section Page 

1. Introduction 1 

2. Summary Assessment  2 

3. Summary of Internal Audit Work Undertaken: 6 

3.A. Cross - Cutting issues 6 

3.B. Corporate or Common Control Systems 7 

3.C. Service Specific Controls; 13 

 Adult Social Services 13 

 Children and Young People Services 14 

 Technical Services 14 

 Finance  15 

 Pension Fund 15 

 Regeneration 15 

 Law, HR & Asset Management 16 

 Wirral Schools 16 

 Follow Up Work 17 

4. Internal Audit Inputs 18 

 Service Establishment 18 

 Audit Plan 19 

Appendix A: Scope, Responsibilities and Assurance 

Page 30



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
1 

1 Introduction 

 Purpose of This Report 

1.1 As part of Wirral Council, the Internal Audit Service is an assurance 
function that primarily provides an independent and objective opinion 
on the adequacy of the whole of the organisation’s control 
environment. The scope, responsibility and assurance function role is 
defined in the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government in the United Kingdom (as reported to this Committee 
and attached at Appendix A). It requires the head of internal audit to 
provide a written report to those charged with governance, timed to 
support the Statement on Internal Control – now subsumed into the 
Annual Governance Statement – which includes an opinion on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s control 
environment.  This report presents my opinion based upon the work 
the Internal Audit Service has performed. 

1.2 This report covers the period 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012 and 
supports the Annual Governance Statement for that year.   

1.3 The scope of our work, management and audit’s responsibilities, the 
basis of the assessment, and access to this report are set out in 
Appendix A to this report. 

 Interim Reports 

1.4 This report builds on the matters reported which remain relevant and 
have been the subject of discussions throughout the year with the 
Chief Executive, Chief Officer’s and individual senior management 
teams. 

1.5 I have also reported summaries of some of the key areas of our work 
to the Audit and Risk Management Committee as they have been 
completed. 

 
 
 
 
David A Garry 
Chief Internal Auditor 
Wirral Council 

Page 31



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
2 

2 Summary Assessment 

 Overall Opinion 

2.1 On the basis of our programme of work for the year, I can conclude 
that the Council’s internal control environment, taken as a whole is 
adequate and generally effective as there are sound control 
systems largely in place though there must be substantial 
improvement in applying the procedures as there have been 
significant issues for the Council during the year, which have arisen 
principally because there have been failures to follow systems and 
procedures correctly.  I have identified individual themes that present 
limited exceptions to this broad conclusion, and have set these out 
below. 

2.2 Whilst recognising that there are control issues which need to be 
addressed, our work during the year has identified good areas of 
effective control and the Council continues to provide effective 
services in a very challenging environment. 

 Key Issues and Themes 

2.3 The Council's agenda has been very challenging for a number of 
years and these pressures will undoubtedly increase in the 
foreseeable future due to the very demanding and extremely difficult 
economic and financial climate at present. The public sector is 
currently experiencing a significant period of unprecedented change 
that has and will continue to require the Council to implement severe 
and radical structural changes across the whole of the organisation. In 
addition, important changes in legislation and policy directly affecting 
the Council and its partners are anticipated in the not too distant 
future. The Council's funding situation will continue to be tight as 
central government reduces expenditure in this area and local 
communities place increasing demands on Council’s services. 

2.4 The impact of this on the Council has to date involved radical 
measures to reduce expenditure through significantly restructuring 
and re-focussing of service delivery areas. These fundamental 
changes to the way in which the Council operates will continue to 
have significant impact on the control environment in many areas of 
the Council’s activities and require management to ensure that 
corresponding risks in these areas are effectively managed. In 
addition, during periods of financial uncertainty and economic 
downturn fraud against public bodies has been shown to increase 
exponentially and the Council must ensure that adequate controls 
remain in place across the organisation to reduce and manage the 
risk presented.  

2.5 In addition to this, to this, a number of external reviews conducted 
during the year have identified some significant weaknesses in the 
governance arrangements currently in operation across the Council 
and have clearly indicated the need for significant change and 

Page 32



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
3 

improvement in this area. The findings and recommendations arising 
from Internal Audit work conducted throughout the year were in 
accordance with this view and a number of specific areas for 
improvement that include senior management taking proper 
ownership of these issues and ensuring that effective consistent 
governance arrangements are effectively embedded within the culture 
of the organisation were     identified . 

2.6 Others areas identified for improvement following audit work 
conducted include Performance Management and the need for more 
robust and transparent systems that include more detailed monitoring 
and reporting arrangements for managers, Chief Officers and 
Members.  

2.7 Concerns have been reported to Chief Officers regarding the lack of 
consistently documented and communicated controls in some areas, 
including corporate governance and the resulting lack of consistency 
in the controls operated between departments and even within 
individual departments and service areas. It is anticipated that the 
benefits arising from the significant restructuring of the Council’s 
departments and the implementation of the changes identified will be 
fully realised in the not too distant future. 

2.8 There is a pressing need to ensure that sufficient focus is given to the 
Council's on-going activities and its infrastructure as well as in the 
areas subject to the greatest change. This will be particularly relevant 
to the information and technology systems infrastructure, which 
should underpin much of the Council's work and efficiency savings in 
the near future. 

2.9 A recurring issue that needs to be addressed by the Council with 
some urgency involves the continuous failure of the organisation to 
meet invoice payment targets. This issue has been reported to 
management and actions are being taken to address these concerns, 
Internal Audit has scheduled work for 2012/13 in this area to evaluate 
progress targeting key payment areas. 

2.10 Increasing demands are being placed on the Council's services by the 
changing national agenda, the need for change and many other 
similar initiatives and developments scheduled. Service specific 
drivers will undoubtedly require significant enhancements to be made 
to key applications and service deliverers must continue to adapt and 
develop to ensure that they can sustain these services. 

2.11 Despite this the Council still does however continue to be well 
regarded overall and achieves a lot, providing valuable services to a 
large and diverse community. However, much will be required of staff 
at a time when many will be concerned for their job security and when 
many are under pressure arising from the changes already in hand. It 
will be vitally important to ensure that the Council's most basic 
financial and operational controls are robust, consistent, widely 
understood and consistently applied. 

 

Page 33



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
4 

2.12 Additional information and a short summary of all our work for each 
area of the Council is provided in section 3. 

 Implications for the Annual Governance Statement 

2.13 In making its Annual Governance Statement the Council considers the 
Chief Internal Auditors opinion in relation to its internal control 
environment, risk management processes and corporate governance.  
The Annual Governance Statement therefore again refers to the need 
for further work to implement and ensure compliance with consistent 
control policies and procedures across the Council. 

2.14 Some changes to the Annual Governance Statement process are 
proposed for 2012/13 following some weaknesses in systems 
identified during 2011/12 exercise.  The changes include a revised 
process and new documentation for obtaining manager’s assurances 
in key areas, refocusing the questions asked, and requiring more 
detailed comment from them regarding the adequacy and ownership 
of arrangements in place. The new system should promote more 
ownership and ‘buy-in’ to the process from officers; a further change 
to be implemented will involve Internal Audit no longer chasing these 
assurance returns. In future any failure on behalf of Chief Officers to 
comply will be documented and reported in the Annual Governance 
Statement to further promote ownership and prevent over reliance on 
internal audit.  

2.15 Additional audit work is scheduled for 2012/13 to evaluate the 
response by Chief Officers to the issues identified following external 
reviews and more proactive testing will be undertaken in key areas 
throughout the year and reported to the Chief Executive and 
Members.   

2.16 Improvements required in a number of key areas of the Council’s 
business and as identified in this report have been reported to senior 
management for inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement for 
2011/12. 

 Implications for the review of the effectiveness of the 
 System of Internal Audit 

2.17 The Council is required by legislation to undertake an annual review 
of the effectiveness of its system of internal audit and to report the 
findings of this review to the audit committee. Since the term "system 
of internal audit" does not have a commonly understood meaning, the 
Technical Audit Panel of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) has issued guidance which defines it as: 

"The framework of assurance available to satisfy a local 
authority that the risks to its objectives, and the risks inherent in 
undertaking its work, have been properly identified and are 
being managed by controls that are adequately designed and 
effective in operation." 

Page 34



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
5 

2.18 This guidance regards heads of internal audit as central to this 
framework of assurance and requires them to acquire an 
understanding of both the Council's risks and its overall whole control 
environment and also of the sources of assurance available to it. 

2.19 As we have implemented the audit plan during the year we have 
taken into consideration the assurance also provided to the Council by 
external bodies, including the Audit Commission, Ofsted, the Care 
Quality Commission, the Office of Surveillance Commissioners and 
various other external bodies. 

 

Page 35



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
6 

3 Summary of Internal Audit Work Undertaken 

3.1 In forming my opinion on the Council's internal control environment, I 
have considered the work undertaken by the Internal Audit Service 
throughout the year (as well as, to a more limited extent, that of 
external providers of assurance) and I have set out below short 
summaries of the reports we have made to individual service areas 
within the Council. 

 Management's Responses to our Findings 

3.2 Each of the issues I have set out in this report has been discussed 
with the relevant management teams as well as with the Chief 
Executive and Chief Officers. Action plans have been agreed and 
actions are already being taken; the Internal Audit Service will follow 
up our findings during the course of 2012/13 and provide further 
support to managers to implement pragmatic solutions to the control 
issues identified. 

3.A. Cross-Cutting Issues 
3.3 The Council's risk management process remains effectively co-

ordinated corporately although issues regarding the updating of 
departmental registers, clear allocation of responsibilities and 
streamlined reporting lines need to be addressed as the Council’s 
strategy and framework are reviewed and refreshed. The Council has 
adopted a pragmatic approach to risk management, although the 
corporate Risk and Insurance Manager has been made aware that 
there is a need for a more widespread ('embedded') understanding of 
the Council's approach within all levels of management and for more 
comprehensive training in this area of operations.  

3.4 The Service has conducted audits of key corporate systems 
evaluating the adequacy of arrangements in key areas such as 
performance management, compliance with legislative, HR and 
constitutional requirements and prepared reports for Chief Officers 
identifying areas for improvement in these areas. The Service 
continues to provide input to Council operations to support improving 
governance arrangements by attending the Council's Corporate 
Governance working group chaired by the Chief Executive and by 
providing a senior member of staff on secondment to support the work 
of the Governance Team. In addition, significant ongoing work is 
being undertaken with Chief Officers to ensure that systems are 
improved and that the requirements of the Annual Governance 
Statement process are complied with. 

3.5 Work is undertaken annually by the Internal Audit Service to provide 
the evidence required to support the production of the Annual 
Governance Statement in compliance with the CIPFA/SOLACE 
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework. 
During 2011/12 problems have been experienced and reported 
regarding the completion of Chief Officer and management assurance 

Page 36



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
7 

statements to support the AGS and changes are proposed for 
2012/13 as identified above in 2.14.  

3.6 Work scheduled for 2012/13 includes more emphasis on Council 
policy and systems in operation over Decision Making including, 
Equality and Diversity, Media Protocol and more detailed work to 
review Departmental and Corporate Plans including and linked to 
Performance Management.   

 

3.B. Corporate or Common Control Systems 
3.7 The Internal Audit Service has undertaken a substantial amount of 

work on the controls that under-pin the Council's work whatever 
operational service is being provided and in whatever service area or 
department. These controls manage the risks of the Council's day to 
day operations that are operated in common across the whole 
organisation. 

3.8 In 2011/12 we focussed on the corporate financial control systems, 
ICT systems, counter fraud arrangements and other systems where 
risks were identified as being significant and in operation over the 
whole of the Council. 

 Key Issues in relation to Corporate or Common Control Systems 

3.9 I have previously reported that a wide range of controls and different 
procedures designed to achieve the same objectives across the 
Council is supported by diverse documentation, much of it not always 
readily accessible to staff. Senior managers have agreed that 
documented governance procedures should be collated and made 
consistent across the Council where possible, and that the 
accessibility of information, particularly through use of the intranet, 
should be improved. 

3.10 Performance Management systems have been affected by ongoing 
corporate changes and the relocation of officers involved in many 
corporate processes, this situation should improve during 2012/13 as 
the new arrangements become embedded. Issues of concern 
identified in reports for Chief Officers include the structure and 
frequency of reporting of performance data to the Executive Team 
and the process for the co-ordination and reporting of performance 
data to the Corporate Performance Team in a consistent structured 
manner to enable meaningful assessments of the organisation’s 
overall performance. It is considered essential that a clear timetabling 
of corporate and departmental reporting requirements is established 
for performance indicator targets and that subsequent monitoring is 
undertaken including that relating to any associated issues. Audit 
work has identified a clear need for more corporate performance 
monitoring, a key function that is not currently performed effectively, 
perhaps due to a lack of resource in this area. 

 

Page 37



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
8 

3.11 The Service has continued to support the implementation of strategic 
change across the Council, providing assurance regarding progress 
for individual projects in areas such as Corporate Procurement, 
Banking Contracts, e-Auctions and Supporting People. More work of 
this nature is included in the Internal Audit Plan for 2012/13. 
     

 Corporate Financial Control Systems 

3.12 Financial control is a key element of the Council’s control environment 
and the core financial systems include, for example, the Payroll, 
Benefits, Revenues and Main Accounting systems. These systems 
have been agreed with the Audit Commission as ‘key’ and each has 
been reviewed to comply with the International Standards on Auditing. 

3.13 Whilst we are able to provide assurance that there is a minimum of an 
adequate level of control in the majority of the key financial systems, 
some issues were identified this year that required management 
action. A review of the online Sundry Debtors Recovery system within 
departments identified a number of risks that were not effectively 
managed and measures have now been introduced to significantly 
improve the level of control within these systems.   
   

3.14 We have continued to develop a suite of Computer Assisted Audit 
Techniques (CAATS) that enable us to test whole databases as well 
as samples of individual transactions. These techniques have become 
an important element of our counter-fraud work, as well as being used 
to support our work on key financial systems.  

3.15 During 2011/12 we used CAATS to identify potential duplicate 
Creditor Payments over the period and identified a number of 
instances in which duplicate payments had been made through the 
Creditors system. All identified anomalies have been investigated by 
management and appropriate actions taken including designing and 
implementing controls to prevent recurrence. Management are 
committed to addressing this problem, however, further work is 
required to ensure that these controls operate to full effect in the 
future.       

3.16 Similar testing of the Payroll systems provided assurance regarding 
the accuracy of standing data and payments made and received over 
a specified period. A number of suspicious employee matches were 
identified including instances of some ex-employees being paid in 
months following their leaving dates and actions have been agreed for 
management to investigate these further. Other actions required to 
increase controls in these areas have been discussed and agreed 
with senior management.     

3.17 Our reviews of the Main Accounting system undertaken during the 
year included assessments of the General Ledger, Treasury 
Management, Budget Cycle and Bank Reconciliation systems and 
whilst actions were agreed with management to address some 
relatively low risk issues overall the opinions on the control 

Page 38



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
9 

environment were of a three or four star rating, which is a very 
effective level of assurance and encouraging for management.    

3.18 Debtor, NNDR and Housing Benefits accounts submitted for write off 
during the year have been verified on a sample basis to provide 
assurances that full recovery action has been completed and the 
amounts submitted are considered acceptable. 

3.19 We have also undertaken work on the Council’s key financial systems 
and have concluded that overall each of the following systems are 
adequately designed and effectively operated in practice: 

 

• Cash and Banking • Procurement 

• Payroll  • Pensions 

• Expenses • Treasury Management 

• Council Tax • Housing Benefits 

• Main Accounting • VAT Compliance 

• Creditors • NNDR 

• Insurance • Debtors 

 

 Corporate Human Resources Systems, including Payroll 

3.20 A number of reviews of different elements of the Payroll systems 
including counter fraud arrangements were completed during the 
year, so as to provide assurance that the key controls are operating 
effectively. The reviews provided a good level of assurance over the 
controls in place and also indicated that the standing data was 
generally sound, payments made were appropriate and no potential or 
actual occurrences of fraud were identified. A number of issues were 
identified and actions agreed with management to investigate were 
appropriate and improve the arrangements to strengthen the controls 
in operation. We will continue to monitor progress made in this area 
during 2012/13 and have scheduled more detailed testing and review 
work to assess this.  

3.21 The Job Evaluation exercise has still not been concluded at Wirral 
and the Council remains in a unique position of not having fully 
concluded this exercise. Human Resources management 
acknowledge that this must be completed during 2012/13 and audit 
will be monitoring this situation.  

3.22 Other corporate Human Resources issues of concern relate to the 
existing policy of retaining officers on the redeployment listing for 
indeterminate periods of time and without proper justification or 
business case as well as the provision of training and development 
outside of the approved Matrix Consultancy contract.   

Page 39



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
10 

                 

 ICT Systems and Controls 

3.23 The Council’s approach to, and management of, information risks is 
continuing to mature.  An audit review of Information Assurance 
highlighted some enduring issues around roles and responsibilities, 
information risk strategy and staff training. The overall opinion 
provided was that information assurance was not yet truly embedded 
within the culture of the organisation and that whilst there where 
pockets of good practice there was scope for much more work to be 
undertaken to implement a joined up authority wide approach to this 
very important issue.  The ongoing restructuring of the IT Services 
section, together with other organisational changes should provide an 
excellent opportunity to implement improved Information Management 
and Assurance procedures with much clearer reporting lines 
throughout the Authority.  The Internal Audit Service will continue to 
monitor progress and provide advice in these areas during 2012/13 as 
well as reporting any concerns in these areas to Chief Officers and 
Members. 

  

3.24 The Internal Audit Service has undertaken a detailed review of the 
processes surrounding the procurement and administration of Mobile 
Phones including an examination of usage across the Council. 
Several issues were identified that require a re-evaluation of how the 
organisation utilises these devices and has more robust policy, 
procedures and controls in operation. Management are currently 
working to implement various actions identified that will improve the 
control environment and reduce overall costs in this area.  
   

3.25 Efficient and secure Agile Working will be fundamental to the success 
of the Authority’s Office Accommodation Strategy.  In 2011/12 we 
reviewed a number of systems which underpin Mobile and Remote 
working, such as Webmail, Wireless Networks and the use of Portable 
Devices to access Authority information and prepared reports for 
senior management identifying areas for improvement.   

3.26 Many of the Council’s objectives depend on resilient, modern ICT 
systems supported by first-class staff with efficient processes and 
procedures.  2012/13 will continue to be a busy year for IT Services 
as the division implements the recommendations of the SOCITM 
report, rolls out virtualised desktops to support agile working and 
continues to improve the support of staff, Members and systems.  
Internal Audit will play an active role, throughout the year, in ensuring 
that all new systems, both technical and procedural, have good 
systems of control.  

3.27 The Council has made good progress to develop effective Information 
Security in general, and continues to improve its Information 
Governance systems although further work is still required in this 
area. Findings arising from audit reviews undertaken during 2011/12 

Page 40



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
11 

have identified a number opportunities for development that are 
currently being addressed by senior management. 

 

 Counter Fraud and Investigatory Work 

3.28 During 2011/12 the development of the Counter Fraud Team within 
the service has continued with significant progress being made in a 
number of key areas. The team has clearly established itself as a 
‘corporate’ function and has become increasingly involved with issues 
and investigations arising from all departments.  

3.29 The development and promotion of the on-line training facility by the 
team has seen almost 50% of the workforce complete this training to 
date. This has clearly raised awareness amongst the workforce of 
potential threats and provided detailed guidance concerning 
appropriate actions for staff to take when presented with this type of 
threat. This training has been supplemented by the provision of more 
detailed direct training for front line officers covering a range of 
subjects including Money Laundering.  

3.30 During the year the team has been involved with eight investigations 
across the Authority, providing advice and guidance to officers and in 
some cases where appropriate conducting the investigation. 

3.31 An exercise was completed to evaluate the effectiveness of the 
Counter Fraud Team against best professional practice by completing 
the CIPFA Fraud Evaluation Diagnostic as well ensuring that the 
service complied with the National Fraud Authority’s Local 
Government Fraud Strategy. This effectively allowed the team to build 
on from the Fraud Questionnaire exercise, conducted in 2010/11 and 
gauge the progress being made including the overall impact on the 
organisation. The findings of this work will continue to inform the work 
of the team during 2011/12 and beyond.    
   

3.32 Policies have been updated during the year for Money Laundering 
and Bribery Act legislation and promoted across the Council. Specific 
training will continue to be provided to all those members of staff 
employed in areas where risks are deemed to be greatest during 
2012/13. 

3.33 A suite of computer assisted audit techniques has been developed 
and used to identify potential financial irregularities by interrogating 
financial and other databases and which closely links our audit and 
investigatory work.  These tests will continue to be conducted during 
2012/13 and any data generated investigated. 

3.34 Proactive counter fraud work conducted during the year has included 
audits of the use or corporate Credit Cards that resulted in some 
significant issues being identified that entailed the removal of a staff 
members credit card facility and corresponding disciplinary action.  

Page 41



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
12 

3.35 Other work carried out has included reviews of Travel and 
Subsistence and Overseas Travel systems and involved the 
verification of a sample of claims submitted by officers. Some 
significant issues were identified concerning compliance with Council 
Policy and agreements subsequently reached with the relevant Chief 
Officers for appropriate actions to be undertaken.  

3.36 A detailed investigation into the activities of a partner organisation 
highlighted the need for more robust documented partnership 
arrangements across the Council that include clear identification of 
roles, responsibilities and management arrangements including 
access rights. 

 

 Confidential Reporting (Whistle-blowing) 

3.37 The Council's Confidential Reporting policy provides Council 
employees with a structured process where they can raise concerns 
in confidence.  During 2011/12 further audit work was conducted to 
ascertain the level of awareness of and understanding of the policy 
amongst Wirral Council staff. The main findings from the review 
indicated that significant work still needs to be undertaken corporately 
to promote the policy and clarify the process to be followed by staff. 
Management have undertaken work in this area and these actions 
should strengthen the arrangements. More audit work is scheduled to 
evaluate the effectiveness of these actions during 2012/13.  
       

 National Fraud Initiative 

3.38 The Audit Commission requires all local authorities to participate in its 
biennial National Fraud Initiative (NFI), which is a national exercise in 
using computer assisted audit techniques, and specifically data 
matching. The NFI exercise consistently results in significant savings 
to the Council, arising largely from payments recovered or stopped. 

3.39 We collated and submitted the required data to the Audit Commission 
for the current exercise and have received reports highlighting areas 
for further investigation. This data is currently being analysed and 
investigated by Wirral Council staff and a summary report will be 
provided by us to the Director of Finance identifying savings and 
actions required in due course. A number of actions have been taken 
across the Council to strengthen arrangements in place in an attempt 
to prevent fraud in these areas, following this exercise. 

 

 Gifts and Hospitality and Conflict of Interest 

3.40 A corporate review of Gifts and Hospitality and Conflict of Interest 
procedures and compliance was undertaken during the year that 
highlighted issues across the organisation regarding significant 
variations in awareness and application of the appropriate 
procedures. Some departments were provided with 1 star opinions on 

Page 42



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
13 

the effectiveness of their arrangements and appropriate actions 
agreed to improve arrangements. 

 

 Constitution / Legal Issues 

3.41 The Service provided input to the annual review of the Constitution to 
provide the Head of Legal and Member Services with assurances 
regarding the adequacy of the proposals and compliance with the 
requirements of the outcome of the Localism Act.  Specific advice and 
guidance was provided during the year regarding interpretation of the 
Contract Procedure Rules. 

 Commissioning and Procurement 

3.42 Work has been undertaken to evaluate controls in operation over 
specific systems that include the Electronic Tendering Portal, 
Estimates for Work Contracts, Corporate Contracts and Evaluation 
Models with reports prepared for management identifying areas for 
improvement that include the lodging of evaluation models with the 
Corporate Procurement Unit, an issue that should be resolved with 
developed use of the Chest as the tendering portal. It is also vital that 
all Departments utilise the iProcurement system and that any spend 
incurred outside of this system is monitored, reported upon and 
followed up by relevant Chief Officers to ensure continued best value 
for the organisation. More audit work is scheduled in this area for 
2012/13 to ensure continued compliance with this important corporate 
policy.  

3.C. Service Specific Controls 

 Adult Social Services Department 

3.43 There are a considerable number of areas where controls should be 
strengthened further to improve the department’s overall internal 
control environment, it is however acknowledged that in some areas 
controls  have been adequately designed and are generally operating 
satisfactorily. Management responses to the findings from our work 
and those of external inspectorates have been positive and indicate 
that action has or will be taken where issues have been identified. 
Follow up work is scheduled in this area for 2012/13 to ensure that 
sufficient progress is made to address issues of concern. 

3.44 The findings of work conducted on the Procurement of Commissioned 
Care indicated the need for significant improvements to address five 
high priority recommendations covering a range of issues including 
the maintenance of evidence trails and measuring and monitoring 
satisfaction with care providers. Management have agreed to address 
these issues with some urgency. More work will be conducted in this 
area during 2012/13 to evaluate progress made.  

3.45 Detailed work was undertaken during the year of the Care Quality 
Commission Improvement Plan to evaluate progress being made by 
the Department. The Improvement plan was the Departments 

Page 43



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
14 

response to concerns raised regarding safeguarding and learning 
disability and sought to address these issues through a range of 
targets and milestones.  The audit review work conducted was highly 
appreciated by the department as being independent and objective 
and is likely to be something that will be repeated in other areas in this 
age of ‘self regulation’. 

3.46 Other issues concerning Gifts and Hospitality and Conflicts of Interest 
have been raised with senior management and actions agreed to 
address concerns in these areas. More work will be conducted in this 
important are of governance during 2012/13.  

 Children and Young People Department  

3.47 Overall, the departments internal control environment is generally 
satisfactory; controls are adequately designed and effectively 
operated, although there are some areas where controls should be 
strengthened further including the system in place for Youth Services, 
specifically bank account management. Significant issues were also 
identified with many Schools regarding the effectiveness of their 
internal controls and the support provided to them by the Bursars Unit. 
Detailed discussions took place with senior management from the 
department and various actions were agreed to address all of the 
issues identified and improve the systems of control in operation. 

          

 Technical Services Department 

3.48 Overall, the internal control environment in operation within the 
department is generally considered to be effective, however their is 
some cause for concern regarding Cultural Services. Generally 
controls over systems are well designed and managed. Management 
response to our work has been good and action is always taken 
promptly in response to the findings of our work. All internal audit 
reports are personally considered jointly by the Director and the 
relevant Head of Service and appropriate actions delegated to 
responsible officers and implementation monitored accordingly. 

3.49 Concerns over the robustness of the financial procedures in operation 
at Cultural Services establishments, particularly around the collection 
of income have been expressed in audit reports following an 
extensive Control Risk Self Assessment exercise conducted across all 
of the establishments. The exercise was proven to be very beneficial 
as it resulted in a heightened awareness amongst managers of the 
risks existing at these types of establishments, and the effective 
controls that they need to put in place. We now believe that there is a 
need for the results of the exercise to drive a full review by the Head 
of Service of the financial procedures in this area and have notified 
the department accordingly.  

3.50 Some other areas for improvement were identified following audits 
conducted during the year and appropriate actions taken to address 

Page 44



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
15 

issues raised within agreed timescales. These included Birkenhead 
Park and the Williamson Art Gallery. 

 

 Finance Department 

3.51 Overall the departments internal control environment is considered to 
be effective with controls well designed and operated. Audits and 
inspections are mainly welcomed as an opportunity to seek 
assurances regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of systems in 
place. In some areas, including Housing Benefits Disputes and 
Appeals, Financial Services General Ledger and Treasury 
Management, systems were assessed as being excellent. 
Management are largely proactive when considering and designing 
necessary controls and are aware of the value of having strong 
systems in operation. Risk and control advice is provided on an 
ongoing basis to the development of revised systems and procedures.  

3.52 Some areas for improvement were identified that included the 
systems in operation over Departmental Creditors and Debtors. 
Meaningful discussions have taken place with management regarding 
the most effective methods of reducing risks and developing more 
robust systems. Issues identified following audits have in the main, 
been addressed and where this is not the case work is currently in 
progress and will be followed up. 

        

 Pension Fund 

3.53 On the basis of the work undertaken during the year, overall the 
internal control environment is adequately designed and operated, 
with some areas such as the Benefits and Payroll services being 
particularly well controlled. 

3.54 However, given the nature of the Pension Fund operations and the 
significance of the finances involved, its inherent risk level is 
significant. Pension Fund management continues to pay attention to 
ensuring that these risks are effectively managed, assisted by 
significant Internal Audit work during 2012/13 which will include 
additional work areas that include Investments Contributions.  

  

 Regeneration 

3.55 Overall, the departments internal control environment is generally 
sound; controls are adequately designed and operated. However 
there are a small number of areas where audit work conducted during 
the year indicated that the systems of control in operation should be 
strengthened further. Management responses to the findings from our 
work have been positive and indicate that action has or will be taken 
where issues have been identified. 

Page 45



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
16 

3.56 The department continues to be very active in driving forward positive 
change and has only recently won a national award for its Investment 
Strategy. 

3.57 Procedures for the award of Grants to Voluntary Organisations both 
within the department and across the Council as a whole have a 
number of acknowledged problems, mostly relating to the consistency 
of approach and implementation of procedures. The 
recommendations arising from work conducted during the year are 
being addressed by the Department and further audit work to verify 
the progress made is to be carried out in 2012/13. 

3.58 The Regeneration Department has undergone significant 
organisational change during 2011/12, with the addition of some 
services previously managed elsewhere and as procedures within the 
newly configured department embed; Internal Audit will continue to 
undertake significant work in this area, so as to provide the required 
assurances on their effectiveness.     
  

 Law, HR and Asset Management 

3.59 The audit work conducted during the year highlighted that there are a 
number of key recommendations which require attention. Many of 
these relate to the Corporate Governance agenda. Consequently, the 
overall control environment is assessed as only being satisfactory as 
it is acknowledged that further improvements are required. 

3.60 Issues identified during the year include systems in operation over 
Day to Day Procurement where a number of significant issues need to 
be addressed to improve the effectiveness of the control environment.  

3.61 Other issues identified of significance include the Registrars function 
that was provided with a 1 star ‘poor’ opinion on the effectiveness of 
its internal control environment and a report prepared for 
management identifying ten high priority recommendations. We would 
expect to see significant progress to address these issues as a matter 
of urgency and more work has been scheduled in this area for 
2012/13 to follow up work completed.  

3.62 As has been widely reported previously it is of the greatest 
importance, that the Department implements a robust system for 
acknowledging and responding to Internal Audit reports and ensuring 
effective implementation of the recommendations made. 

           

 Wirral Schools 

3.63 The 2011/12 audit plan included a new approach and risk assessment 
in respect of school audits that enabled audit resources to be targeted 
more effectively to those schools deemed to be of the highest risk. A 
range of factors, including the results and date of the last audit, the 
schools budget position and other high profile issues were used to 
select those schools deemed to be of the highest risk. In addition to 
this the type of audits undertaken at Schools has been developed so 

Page 46



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
17 

that specific areas of internal control can be targeted individually, such 
as Debtors, Creditors, Budgets and Treasury Management, and 
Payroll and Personnel. A full audit of all risk areas is also undertaken. 

3.64 The use of this targeted and highly risk aware approach has 
generated a total of five school audits, identified below that have 
resulted in a 1 star opinion and included significant numbers of High 
Priority recommendations relating to a range of systems weaknesses. 

 Stanton Road Primary 

 Bidston Village Primary 

 Holy Spirit Catholic and CE Primary 

 Brackenwood Primary 

 Calday Grange Grammar 

  

3.65 This approach has been most beneficial focussing management 
attention, and has resulted in raised awareness of the need for robust 
internal controls in schools particularly during periods of economic 
decline and financial hardship when risks increase. Requests for 
training and awareness sessions were met during the year, with 
Internal Audit advising schools of common areas of weakness, and 
identifying ways to improve these. Such developments are very 
positive in raising standards of control over time. 

3.66 All of the issues identified in the reports were discussed with 
Headteachers and Governors were appropriate and required actions 
subsequently taken by them to improve the systems in operation. 

3.67 Due to the success of this approach more work of this nature is 
scheduled 2012/13. In addition to this more work is also scheduled 
with the School Bursars Unit to ensure that effective support is being 
provided to schools.      

 Follow-up Work 

3.68 We have undertaken work to ascertain progress in implementing 
agreed recommendations resulting from earlier years' reviews. All of 
the recommendations we have agreed with management have either 
been implemented as agreed or are in the process of being 
implemented. Revised action plans have been obtained detailing the 
progress to date and a timescale for full implementation where this 
has not already been achieved. Regular update reports on this are 
included within routine audit reports to the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee. 

 

 

Page 47



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
18 

4 Internal Audit Inputs 

4.1 In fulfilling its duty to consider the performance of the Internal Audit 
Service, the Audit and Risk Management Committee will be 
interested, on behalf of the Council, to understand the way that the 
Internal Audit Service has been staffed and its resources deployed. 

 Internal Audit Service Establishment - 2011/12 

4.2 The Internal Audit Service has a very professionally competent and 
committed workforce that has adapted well to enforced changes and 
developments in working practices implemented during the year by 
management to increase efficiency. These measures were necessary 
to address a significant shortfall in staffing resource experienced 
throughout the year. 

4.3 Recruiting and retaining suitable qualified and experienced staff is the 
key to the successful achievement of the Audit Plan and being able to 
address the many other issues and investigations that arise during 
each year. The problems of staffing have constantly been a concern 
and have been regularly reported to the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee. The widening role and area of responsibility of Internal 
Audit continues to exacerbate this problem but staff are continuously 
gaining experience and enhancing their ability to address new issues. 
Though the remit has increased significantly, the Service has 
downsized but it is considered that it should to be able to provide an 
effective service with the help of Chief Officers in identifying risks and 
implementing recommendations swiftly. 

4.4 The Internal Audit Service has also particularly felt the loss of two 
members of staff from the Counter Fraud Team for a significant part of 
the year, although the extent of the impact of this was reduced slightly 
by the acquisition of two temporary members of staff for the final 
quarter of the year and impact upon the plan delivery was kept to a 
minimum. 

4.5 A number of vacancies have also existed at Assistant, Senior and 
Group Auditor level during the year for a number of different reasons 
and has impacted upon the Service’s ability to deliver the plan in its 
entirety. The actual impact upon the plan delivery was however 
lessened slightly by the appointment of a number of temporary 
members of staff during the final quarter of the year.  

4.6 Sickness levels amongst the internal audit workforce are amongst the 
lowest in the Council and compare very favourably with all national 
indicators, a considerable achievement given the very stressful nature 
of the audit work at times. The total number of days lost due to 
sickness per employee during the year was 3 days. The current rate 
for the Service is 2.5 days which compares very favourably with the 
target for the Council as a whole. 

4.7 Following an external review of the Service it is envisaged that some 
strengthening will take place and additional resource may be made 

Page 48



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
19 

available during 2012/13 to enable the delivery of increased work in a 
number of key areas that include Counter Fraud and Governance. 

 Internal Audit Plan - 2011/12 

4.8 Due to staffing issues experienced during the year including the 
secondment of one of only two Group Auditors out of the Section and 
the loss of the two members of staff that make up the Counter Fraud 
Team for a large proportion of the year it was necessary to make a 
number of adjustments to the plan during the year. This was reported 
to the Audit and Risk Management Committee during the year and the 
changes endorsed by them. The Service was therefore able to utilise 
2484 days in total to deliver the Audit Plan during 2011/12 and 
consequently was able to complete 177 audits plus follow ups which 
equates to 84% of the planned work. 

4.9 This represents a significant achievement and recognises the 
important work undertaken by the service to increase performance 
and productivity following the reduction in staffing resource during the 
year. Importantly, the Service has completed all of the Assurance 
audits identified in the Audit Plan as being essential to the provision of 
our ‘annual opinion’ on the effectiveness of the Council’s control 
environment. 

4.10 This assurance work is required by the Audit Commission, supports 
the production of the Annual Governance Statement and is essential 
to the well being of the organisation. Regular meetings take place 
between officers from Audit Commission and the Internal Audit 
Service to discuss audit work and findings and the Commission 
continue to work very closely with Internal Audit in specific areas.  

4.11 The total time involved in managing the Internal Audit Service and 
providing support to the senior management team and Members 
together amounts to 300 days against a plan of 350 days. 

4.12 The individual audits completed and days spent on each area of our 
audit plan, by service area, are set out in the table overleaf: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49



Wirral Council Internal Audit Service 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 

 
20 

Actual Outturn Variance (%) Audit Area Planned 
Audits 

Planned 
Audit 
Days Audits Days Audits Days 

CROSS CUTTING RISKS       

Corporate Governance 8 130 8 165 - 27 

Risk Management 7 70 7 77 - 10 

Other Work (estimated) 3 200 6 92 50 -54 

SUB-TOTAL 18 400 21 334 17 -17 

SERVICE SPECIFIC RISKS       

Adult Social Services 8 189 8 93 - -51 

Children and Young Peoples 28 379 25 427 -11 13 

Technical Services 9 139 5 104 -44 -25 

Regeneration, Housing & 
Planning 

11 183 5 82 -54 -55 

Law, HR & Asset Management 6 94 6 94 - - 

Finance 4 84 3 18 -25 -79 

Pensions 5 109 5 82 - -25 

SUB-TOTAL 71 1177 57 900 -20 -24 

CORPORATE/COMMON RISK       

Financial Systems 24 504 20 360 -17 -29 

ICT Systems 26 388 19 324 -27 -16 

Commissioning & Procurement 10 144 10 136 - -6 

Human Resources 6 95 3 54 -50 -43 

Partnerships 2 30 2 23 - -23 

Constitution 5 37 5 27 - -27 

Contracting 12 85 12 76 - -11 

Anti Fraud 36 400 30 250 -23 -38 

SUB TOTAL 121 1683 101 1250 -18 -26 

TOTAL CONTROL OPINION 210 3260 177 2484 -16 -24 

Page 50



Wirral Internal Audit Service  Appendix A 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012  
 

 

 

 Appendix A: 1 

1. Scope, Responsibilities and Assurance 

1.1. Approach 

1.1.1. In accordance with the CIPFA Code of Audit Practice, the scope of 
 internal audit encompasses all of the Council’s operations, resources 
 and services including where they are provided by other 
 organisations on their behalf.   

1.2. Responsibilities of Management and Internal Auditors 

1.2.1 It is management’s responsibility to maintain systems of risk 
 management, internal control and governance.  Internal audit is an 
 element of the internal control framework assisting management in 
 the effective discharge of its responsibilities and functions by 
 examining and evaluating controls.  Internal auditors cannot therefore 
 be held responsible for internal control failures. 

1.2.2. However, we have planned our work so that we have a reasonable 
 expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses.  We have 
 reported all such weaknesses to Chief Officers as they have become 
 known to us, without undue delay, and have worked with them to 
 develop proposals for remedial action. 

1.2.3. Internal audit procedures alone do not guarantee that fraud will be 
 detected.  Accordingly, our examinations as internal auditors should 
 not be relied upon solely to disclose fraud or other irregularities which 
 may exist, unless we are requested to carry out a special 
 investigation for such activities in a particular area. 

1.2.4. Internal audit’s role includes assessing the adequacy of the risk 
 management processes, key internal control systems and corporate 
 governance arrangements put in place by management and 
 performing testing on a sample of transactions to ensure those 
 controls were operating for the period under review. 

1.3. Basis of Our Assessment 

1.3.1. My opinion on the adequacy of control arrangements is based upon 
 the result of internal audit reviews undertaken and completed during 
 the period in accordance with the plan approved by the Audit and 
 Risk Management Committee.  We have obtained sufficient, reliable 
 and relevant evidence to support the recommendations that we 
 have made. 

1.4. Limitations to the Scope of Our Work 

1.4.1. There have been no limitations to the scope of our work. 

1.5. Limitations on the assurance that internal audit can provide 

1.5.1. There are inherent limitations as to what can be achieved by internal 
control and consequently limitations to the conclusions that can be 

Page 51



Wirral Internal Audit Service  Appendix A 
Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012  
 

 

 

 Appendix A: 2 

drawn from our work as internal auditors.  These limitations include 
the possibility of faulty judgement in decision making, of breakdowns 
because of human error, of control activities being circumvented by 
the collusion of two or more people and of management overriding 
controls.  Also there is no certainty that internal controls will continue 
to operate effectively in future periods or that the controls will be 
adequate to mitigate all significant risks which may arise in future.   

1.5.2. Decisions made in designing internal controls inevitably involve the 
 acceptance of some degree of risk.  As the outcome of the operation 
 of internal controls cannot be predicted with absolute assurance any 
 assessment of internal control is judgmental. 

1.6. Access to this Report and Responsibility to Third Parties 

1.6.1. I have prepared this report solely for Wirral Council.  As you are 
 aware, this report forms part of a continuing dialogue between the 
 Internal Audit Service, the Director of Finance, Chief Executive, Audit 
 and Risk Management Committee and management of the Council.  
 It is not therefore intended to include every matter that came to our 
 attention during each internal audit review. 

1.6.2. I acknowledge that this report may be made available to other parties, 
 such as the external auditors.  I accept no responsibility to any third 
 party who may receive this report for any reliance that they may place 
 on it and, in particular, I expect the external auditors to determine for 
 themselves the extent to which they choose to utilise our work. 

 

    

Page 52



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
14 JUNE 2012 
 
SUBJECT CORPORATE RISK AND INSURANCE 

MANAGEMENT 
WARD/S AFFECTED ALL 
REPORT OF ACTING CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER 

COUNCILLOR PHIL DAVIES 

KEY DECISION NO 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report details progress made against the objectives for corporate risk and 

insurance management and anticipated developments in the coming months. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
 Insurance Management progress 
 
2.1 The active involvement with the ongoing civil law reform process is continuing 

and the Council has been represented at two national meetings on this issue 
(19 March and 9 May) representing both Wirral and the Association of Local 
Authority Risk Managers (ALARM). 

 
2.2 Liability claims statistics for Q4 2011/12 were completed. The overall picture 

for public liability claims is relatively steady at between 450 and 500 claims 
per year although this was assisted this year by the mild winter. Employers’ 
liability claims remain a growing problem. The bulk of the workload continues 
to relate to non standard Employers Liability (EL) and Public Liability (PL) 
matters. Defamation, vibration white finger, noise induced hearing loss, 
abuse, failure to protect, stress and bullying are just some examples of the 
complex matters currently handled. 

 
2.3 On 28 March 2012 the Supreme Court decision in respect of the Employers 

Liability (EL) insurance trigger litigation ruled that EL policies respond as at 
the date of initiation or causation of the disease or injury (at the time when the 
person was exposed). This is significant for Wirral and other local authorities 
because it means that a ‘claw back’ in the Scheme of Arrangement for 
Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI) is now almost certain to be triggered. 
Under this MMI can recover from the Council a percentage of claims 
payments made since the Scheme began in 1993. Provision has been made 
within the insurance Fund for potential costs but if the claw back does not 
enable MMI to achieve a solvent run off the Council may also have to fund a 
part of the cost of future claims. The situation is being closely monitored and 
will be considered in future funding studies. 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 53



 
2.4 In March 2012 Merseyside Police made an arrest in connection with a 

fraudulent highway liability claim brought against the Council. This case is one 
of the more blatant examples of fraud as a serious injury was sustained by the 
claimant but not in the manner alleged as the highway defect allegedly 
causative of the injury was apparently created by the claimant some months 
after the actual accident that occurred elsewhere. Details are awaited from the 
Crown Prosecution Service as to whether they are to pursue the prosecution. 

 
2.5 The Insurance Fund accounts for 2011/12 had been completed including an 

internal review of reserves and provisions which results in a transfer of funds 
to the Council general balances. This will be included in the Insurance Fund 
Annual Report to Cabinet in July. 

 
2.6 A new manager has been appointed by Council’s brokers JLT Public Sector 

Risks to service the Councils account. As indicated previously although the 
contract gives the Council the right to end the broking contract in such 
circumstances the performance of the new post holder is under review. 

 
2.7 Renewal terms for those policies expiring on 31 March 2012 were received:- 
 

Policy Insurer Estimate Actual Difference 
  £ £ £ 
Liability Zurich Municipal 142,500 140,000 -2,500 
Liability Claims 
Handling 

Zurich Municipal 65,900 * 67,000 +1,100 

Professional 
Indemnity 

Aviva 12,000 10,300 -1,700 

Motor Zurich Municipal 37,500 31,800 -5,700 
Engineering Zurich Municipal 110,200 117,600 +7,400 
Computer HSB Haughton 15,000 14,000 -1,000 
Foster Care – All 
Risks 

Axa 11,100 10,300 +800 

Foster Care – Legal 
Expenses 

Abbey Legal 
Protection 

3,100 3,000 -100 

 * Deposit charge. Maximum could be £95,200 depending on claims numbers. 
 
2.8 As part of the work supporting Academies competitive quotations were 

obtained and a comprehensive stand alone insurance package put in place 
for Hilbre High School ahead of its planned conversion to Academy status on 
1 June 2012. 

 
2.9 A proposal to extend the insurance programmes for all academy schools to a 

common renewal date of 1 September 2013 is being progressed with the 
holding insurer, Zurich Municipal, and the schools. This will enable the 
administration of a fully competitive tender for the insurances of these schools 
in early 2013/14 and produce an estimated £40,000 fee income for the Fund 
in 2012/13. 

Page 54



 
2.10 As part of its programme for improving the management of insurance and 

following the advice given by Wirral’s risk and insurance team, Sefton Council 
have now formally joined the Wirral lead litigation defence services contract. 
This contract had been issued on a collaborative basis. Further avenues for 
joint working are being explored. 

 
Risk Management Progress 

 
2.11 In developing the Council’s performance management arrangements 

agreement has been reached with Concerto Support Services Limited over a 
specification for enhancements to the functionality of the system to capture 
analyse and report risk information. The cost will be met from the Risk 
Management Fund. 

 
2.12 The future Risk Management Framework has seen a draft proposal prepared 

for consideration by the Acting Chief Executive before being progressed with 
the leadership, both Elected Members and Chief Officers. 

 
2.13 The Risk & Insurance Officer has conducted a critical appraisal of the risk 

registers for all Departmental Service Plans for 2012/13 and has provided 
feedback to assist with continuous improvement. Specific support was 
provided to the Department of HR, Law & Asset Management on options for 
improving structures and processes for managing risks to the department’s 
objectives 

 
2.14 A review of the Corporate Risk Register was undertaken at the end of March 

2012 and the results included in the Corporate Risk Monitoring Summary 
appended to the Corporate Performance and Financial Review being reported 
to cabinet in June 2012. 

 
 Objectives for 2012/13 
 
2.15 The principal areas of responsibility for the Risk and Insurance Team remain:- 

 
(i) Procuring appropriate, cost effective, external insurance cover and 

claims handling services. Administering annual renewals 
(ii) Maintaining accurate records of properties, fleet vehicles and other 

assets 
(iii) Managing the Insurance Fund and associated Budgets. 
(iv) Investigating and administering internally insured claims. 
(v) Making decisions on tactics and procedure in relation to pre-litigated 

and litigated claims. 
(vi) Managing the performance of claims handlers and legal providers. 
(vii) Facilitating and providing appropriate training to Members and officers. 
(viii) Supporting Members and Chief Officers in improving the policy, 

framework and processes for managing risk and opportunity. 
(ix) Supporting all areas of the Council in the identification, analysis and 

management of risk. 

Page 55



 
2.16 The table shows the main individual tasks to be undertaken during the year 

and the target dates for completion. A significant area of work concerns 
improvements to the Risk Management Framework and processes. 

 
Task Target Date 
Undertake the in-house review of funding for insured 
liabilities 

May 2012 

Discuss with leadership proposals for improvements to 
Risk Management Framework and processes 

June 2012 

Roll out new risk management module of Concerto 
project management system 

August 2012 

Negotiate annual renewal of Marine Insurance contract September 2012 
Complete the Insurance Fund Budget 2013/14 November 2012 
Begin exercise to remarket and procure the Property, 
Business Interruption, Money and Fidelity Guarantee 
insurance contracts 

January 2013 

Manage the renewal of the Liabilities, Motor, 
Engineering, Computer and Foster Care policies 

February 2013 

Review of key departmental risks for 2013/14 Feb/Mar 2013 
 
2.17 Regular reports on the progress of Insurance and Risk Management will 

continue to be presented to Audit and Risk Management Committee. There 
will also be regular updates on significant risks as part of the quarterly 
Performance and Financial Review reports presented to Cabinet. 

 
 Insurance Management – Issues for Next Period 

 
2.18 Support for the civil law reform process will continue with work in connection 

with the process of reform to civil litigation costs. 
 
2.19 The management of liability claims is expected to continue, particularly with 

regard to the number and scope of complex claims, demanding a substantial 
part of the available resources. 

 
2.20 A complete revaluation of the Council’s civic regalia and the silver collection in 

the Williamson Art Gallery will be undertaken and is expected to result in an 
increased sum insured and in turn a larger premium. 

 
2.21 Renewal terms for the Council’s Property, Business Interruption, Money and 

Fidelity Guarantee insurance contracts on 30 June 2012 will be received. 
 
 Risk Management – Issues for Next Period 
 
2.22 The organisational risk module in the Council Performance Management 

System will be tested for functionality and any further changes needed 
identified and implemented. 

 
2.23 The Executive Team will review of the Corporate Risk Register by 30 June 

2012 as part of the corporate performance monitoring process. 

Page 56



 
2.24 Attendance at the ALARM Professional Development Forum in Manchester 

will provide an opportunity to update technical knowledge and gain awareness 
of good practice which helps to improve insurance and claims management 
and also informs the review of the Council’s Risk Management Framework 
and processes. 

 
2.24 Subject to approval by the Acting Chief Executive the proposed approach to 

develop the future Risk Management Framework will be progressed. 
 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
 
3.1 No decisions are required in relation to this report. As such there are no risks 

or opportunities to report. 
 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 These are not applicable in respect of this monitoring report. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 No specific consultation has been undertaken with regard to this report. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 
 
6.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 The Academy Schools initiative undertaken by the Risk & Insurance Team is 

continuing to generate income which offsets insurance administration costs. 
 
7.2 Although under pressure the Team has sufficient resource to deal with its 

insurance responsibilities. However the additional work required as a result of 
the planned improvements to risk management arrangements may not be 
deliverable within existing staff resources. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are none arising directly from this report which updates Members on 

progress in Corporate Risk and Insurance Management. 
 
9.2 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is not required for this report. 
 

Page 57



10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
12.1 That the Corporate Risk and Insurance Management report be noted. 
 
13.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
13.1 Regular update reports are presented to this Committee on the work around 

Risk and Insurance which seek to support the Risk Management Strategy and 
maintain the successful management of the Insurance Fund. 

 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Mike Lane 
  Risk & Insurance Officer 
  telephone:  0151 666 3413 
  email:   mikelane@wirral.gov.uk 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL / SUBJECT HISTORY 
 
Council Meeting Date 
Audit & Risk Management Committee 
 - Corporate Risk And Insurance Management 

Updates are presented 
to each meeting of the 
Committee 

 

Page 58



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
14 JUNE 2012 
 
SUBJECT AUDIT COMMISSION PROGRESS 

REPORT – ACTION AREAS 
WARD/S AFFECTED ALL 
REPORT OF ACTING CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER 

COUNCILLOR ADRIAN JONES 

KEY DECISION NO 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Audit Commission Progress Report presented to each meeting of this 

Committee makes reference to areas that this Committee may wish to consider. 
As requested by Committee this report provides detail on the action taken by 
the Council in respect of those identified in the January / March Progress 
Reports. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
 AUDIT COMMISSION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
2.1 Presented to each meeting of this Committee this includes an ‘Other matters of 

interest’ section which highlights recent publications, by the Commission and 
other organisations, as well as an update on any progressing legislative 
proposals. To assist Members the Commission have introduced a ‘Key 
considerations’ section comprising questions that the Committee may wish to 
consider. Committee on 1 February 2012 requested that an update on the 
issues and the actions taken by the Council be presented to a future meeting. 

 
Auditing the 2010/11 Accounts 

 
2.2 National report published by the Commission on 15 December 2011. 
 
2.3 Issue : Has the Council reviewed the report on the 2010/11 Accounts and, in 

particular, considered the key challenges facing bodies for 2011/12? 
 
2.4 Response : This Committee considered a Statement of Accounts 2011/12 

Review of Arrangements report on 1 February 2012 which referred to the 
Commission report and compared the Wirral position with the national findings. 

 
Lets be clear : Making local authority IFRS accounts more accessible and 
understandable 

 
2.5 The Commission issued a briefing paper on 18 January 2012 which 

supplemented the Auditing the 2010/11 Accounts report in section 2.3. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 59



 
2.6 Issue : Has the Council reviewed its 2010/11 Accounts and identified ways in 

which these could be streamlined or clarified? 
 
2.7 Response : The size of the Statement of Accounts has increased considerably 

and the 2010/11 Statement comprised of 176 pages. This increase resulted 
partly from the initial disclosures required under International Financial 
Reporting Standards so will reduce in size in 2011/12. The opportunity is also 
being taken to reduce the number of supporting notes and to limit any ‘clutter’ in 
following the Commission’s briefing paper. Each year actions are taken to make 
the Foreword to the Accounts more of an overview and potentially a ‘stand-
alone’ streamlined document and this will be further enhanced. The Council has 
produced a Summary Statement of Accounts leaflet for a number of years. The 
profession has recognised that action is needed to increase understanding and 
accessibility and guidance from CIPFA is expected later this year. 

 
Managing Workforce Costs 

 
2.8 The Commission and Local Government Association jointly launched ‘Work in 

progress : Meeting local needs with lower workforce costs’. The report is 
supplemented by a number of resources including:- 
• An agency workers expenditure tool which shows councils how much they 

spend on agency workers compared with other councils. 
• A workforce expenditure tool which shows councils how much they spend 

on staff as a proportion of their current net expenditure, and how this has 
changed over time. 

• Case studies providing examples of the different approaches councils are 
taking to reduce the costs of employing people while protecting valuable 
services. 

• A practical guide on how to undertake effective pay benchmarking. 
There is also a briefing for elected members with a series of questions to help 
assess how well their council decides the size, shape and cost of its workforce 
and how these decisions will affect services and communities, 

 
2.9 Issue : Has the Council reviewed the report and is Audit & Risk Management 

Committee satisfied that appropriate use has been made of the supporting 
materials? 

 
2.10 Issue : Has the Council circulated the briefing for elected members on the 

workforce report to Members? Is the Audit & Risk Management Committee 
satisfied that the questions within the briefing have been properly considered by 
the Council? 

 
2.11 Response : The Department of Law, HR and Asset Management has 

undertaken a detailed analysis of workforce costs, including allowances, 
overtime and use of agency workers. Preliminary discussions with the Trade 
Unions have covered areas where workforce costs may be reduced and the 
potential implications for employees and services. This is part of the Strategic 
Change Programme for which proposals are to be submitted to Cabinet later 
this year. 

Page 60



 
2.12 The Council has in recent years reviewed its contractual arrangements in 

respect of the recruitment and appointment of agency workers. The progress of 
Job Evaluation is regularly reported to Cabinet and Stage 3, for those 
employees above Spinal Column Point 34, is scheduled to be concluded in 
2012. 

 
Joining up health and social care 

 
2.13 This second briefing on social care was published by the Commission on 1 

December 2011 – ‘Joining Up Health and Social Care – Improving Value For 
Money Across The Interface’. 

 
2.14 Issue : Has the Council reviewed the questions included in the briefing paper on 

joining up adult and social care? 
 
2.15 Issue : Has the Council used the Commission’s tool to benchmark the 

performance of its NHS and Social Care Partnership? 
 
2.16 Response :The Department of Adult Social Services is currently consulting on 

its Overarching Commissioning Strategy which contains the proposal to develop 
specific Targeted Commissioning Plans. It is proposed to address the questions 
raised in the Audit Commission document as part of the development of the 
Targeted Support Commissioning Plan. A report outlining the progress on the 
development of the Plan will be presented to the Health and Wellbeing 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 10 September 2012. 

 
2.17 As part of the development of the Targeted Support Commissioning Plan use 

will be made of the Audit Commission’s health and social care interface tool to 
benchmark the performance of local NHS and Social Care activity and agree 
how to best to use the funds allocated to the NHS and the Council to support 
joint working. 

 
CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance 

 
2.18 CIPFA published an update to the Code which reflects the introduction of 

International Financial Reporting Standards. 
 
2.19 Issue ; Has the Council reviewed its performance indicators in the light of the 

revised Code? 
 
2.20 Response : The updated Treasury Management Policy was reported to Cabinet 

on 22 February 2012 and included the updated indicators. 
 

2011/12  Accounts : CIPFA Guidance Notes for Practitioners 
 
2.21 Each year CIPFA publish a set of guidance notes to provide support in 

preparing the accounts. 

Page 61



 
2.22 Issue : Has the Council reviewed CIPFA’s guidance notes and made 

satisfactory arrangements for their implementation? 
 
2.23 Response : These have been covered in the Audit Commission workshops 

attended by local authorities, including Wirral, in February 2012 and events 
organised by CIPFA which focus more on the technical accounting 
requirements which Wirral attended in March 2012. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
 
3.1 The papers from the Commission and others offer advice and guidance on 

compliance with regulations in respect of accounting and technical issues. 
Those in respect of the workforce and social care present opportunities for 
improvement and achieving efficiencies in the delivery of services and the 
benefits could be foregone if the opportunities are not taken. 

 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 There are no options considered in this report. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 No specific consultation has been undertaken with regard to this report. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 
 
6.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no direct financial, staffing or IT implications arising directly from this 

report. The implementation of actions following consideration of the reports from 
the Commission and others will be reported to Cabinet with appropriate 
implications. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There is a legal requirement to publish the Statement of Accounts by 30 

September each year. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
9.2 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is not required for this report. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 

Page 62



 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
12.1 That the responses to the issued identified in the Audit Commission Progress 

Report be noted. 
 
13.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
13.1 The issues were identified by the Commission and this Committee requested a 

report on the actions taken by the Council. 
 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Tom Sault 
  Head of Financial Services 
  telephone:  (0151 666 3407) 
  email:   tomsault@wirral.gov.uk 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY 
 
Council Meeting Date 
Audit & Risk Management Committee 
– Audit Committee Update – Audit Commission 

Updates are presented 
to each meeting of the 
Committee. 

 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
1

C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 
re

tu
rn

s 
- 

an
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 
W

ir
ra

l C
o

u
n

ci
l 

A
u

d
it

 2
01

0/
11

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 65



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
2

C
o

n
te

n
ts

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

3

R
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
20

10
/1

1 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 w
o

rk
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.4

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.9

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 f

ee
s

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.1

6

Page 66



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
3

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

I r
ep

o
rt

ed
 t

h
e 

o
u

tc
o

m
e 

o
f 

th
e 

20
10

/1
1 

g
ra

n
t 

cl
ai

m
s 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
to

 m
em

b
er

s 
o

n
 1

3 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2.
 

T
h

is
 s

u
p

p
le

m
en

ta
ry

 r
ep

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

o
u

tc
o

m
es

 o
f 

m
y 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
th

e 
tw

o
 

20
10

/1
1 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 r
et

u
rn

s 
th

at
 w

er
e 

st
ill

 b
ei

n
g

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 a

t 
th

at
 t

im
e.

 

In
 m

y 
gr

an
t c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 A
ud

it 
an

d 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
n 

13
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

2 
I c

on
fir

m
ed

 th
at

 
th

e 
gr

an
t c

la
im

s 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r 
20

10
/1

1 
w

as
 c

om
pl

et
e 

an
d 

se
t o

ut
 th

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 o

f o
ur

 w
or

k.
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
 c

er
tif

ic
at

e 
I a

ls
o 

re
po

rt
 b

ac
k 

to
 

th
e 

D
ep

ut
y 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

an
d 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 in

 a
 le

tte
r 

an
y 

fu
rt

he
r 

is
su

es
 th

at
 w

e 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 r

ep
or

te
d 

to
 th

e 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t b
ut

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

re
so

lv
ed

 o
r 

w
he

re
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

. 

A
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 w

rit
in

g 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t I

 w
as

 s
til

l d
is

cu
ss

in
g 

th
e 

is
su

es
 a

nd
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

n 
tw

o 
gr

an
t c

la
im

s.
 T

hi
s 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 r

ep
or

t n
ow

 
su

m
m

ar
is

es
 th

os
e 

is
su

es
 fo

r 
m

em
be

rs
’ a

tte
nt

io
n,

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

es
 th

e 
po

si
tio

n 
on

 fe
es

 fo
r 

20
10

/1
1.

 T
he

 fi
na

l t
w

o 
cl

ai
m

s 
no

w
 

be
in

g 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

re
: 

!
F

lo
od

 a
nd

 c
oa

st
al

 e
ro

si
on

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

!
S

ur
e 

st
ar

t, 
ea

rly
 y

ea
rs

 a
nd

 c
hi

ld
ca

re
 g

ra
nt

 a
nd

 a
im

in
g 

hi
gh

 fo
r 

di
sa

bl
ed

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
gr

an
t 

Page 67



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
4

R
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
20

10
/1

1 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 
w

o
rk

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

re
su

lt
s 

o
f 

m
y 

20
10

/1
1 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e 
tw

o
 r

em
ai

n
in

g
 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h

e 
si

g
n

if
ic

an
t 

is
su

es
 a

ri
si

n
g

 f
ro

m
 t

h
at

 w
o

rk
. 

T
ab

le
 1

: 
C

la
im

s 
an

d
 r

et
u

rn
s 

ab
o

ve
 £

50
0,

00
0 

T
he

re
 w

er
e 

7 
cl

ai
m

s 
ab

ov
e 

£5
00

,0
00

 (
10

 c
la

im
s 

in
 to

ta
l i

n 
20

10
/1

1)
 a

nd
 th

is
 s

ec
tio

n 
re

po
rt

s 
on

 th
e 

fin
al

 2
 c

la
im

s 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
V

al
u

e 
o

f 
cl

ai
m

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 

fo
r 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 

(£
’0

00
)

W
as

 r
el

ia
n

ce
 p

la
ce

d
 o

n
 

th
e 

co
n

tr
o

l 
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
t?

V
al

u
e 

o
f 

an
y 

am
en

d
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
W

as
 a

 
q

u
al

if
ic

at
io

n
le

tt
er

 is
su

ed
?

 

F
u

rt
h

er
 is

su
es

 
ra

is
ed

 in
 le

tt
er

 
to

 D
C

E
&

D
o

F
 

F
lo

od
 a

nd
 c

oa
st

al
 e

ro
si

on
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

1,
38

7,
16

3 
N

o 
– 

F
irs

t y
ea

r 
of

 c
la

im
 

an
d 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 li

qu
id

at
io

n 
th

er
ef

or
e 

pa
rt

 A
 &

 B
 

te
st

in
g 

re
qu

ire
d 

-1
 

Y
es

 
Y

es
 -

 s
ee

 (
1)

 
be

lo
w

: 1
7 

hi
gh

 
pr

io
rit

y
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

S
ur

e 
st

ar
t, 

ea
rly

 y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 

ch
ild

ca
re

 g
ra

nt
 a

nd
 a

im
in

g 
hi

gh
 fo

r 
di

sa
bl

ed
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

gr
an

t  

15
,1

40
,6

05
 

N
o 

– 
T

he
 c

la
im

 is
 c

om
pl

ex
 

an
d 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
 la

rg
e 

vo
lu

m
e 

of
 b

ot
h 

re
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

ca
pi

ta
l t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 

0 
Y

es
  

Y
es

 –
 s

ee
 (

2)
 

be
lo

w
: 1

 h
ig

h 
an

d 
5 

m
ed

iu
m

 p
rio

rit
y 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 

Page 68



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
5

(1
)

F
lo

o
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
as

ta
l e

ro
si

o
n

 m
an

ag
em

en
t

T
he

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

 g
ra

nt
 to

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
w

or
ks

 o
f t

he
 M

ar
in

e 
La

ke
 w

al
l a

t W
es

t K
irb

y 
an

d 
th

e 
w

or
k 

w
as

 m
an

ag
ed

 
by

 th
e 

T
ec

hn
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t.

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

 te
nd

er
in

g 
ex

er
ci

se
 to

 s
el

ec
t t

he
 o

rig
in

al
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
fo

r 
th

e 
w

or
ks

 a
nd

 th
at

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

w
as

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 m
em

be
rs

 o
n 

11
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
09

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
C

ab
in

et
 m

ee
tin

g 
on

 5
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
09

. H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 o
rig

in
al

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

ab
an

do
ne

d 
th

e 
si

te
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
w

or
ks

 o
n 

24
 A

pr
il 

20
09

 a
nd

 s
ub

se
qu

en
tly

 w
en

t i
nt

o 
liq

ui
da

tio
n;

 th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 w
as

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
an

ot
he

r 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

.

A
 q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
n 

le
tte

r 
w

as
 r

ai
se

d 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 I 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o 

ra
is

ed
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ep

ut
y 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

an
d 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

F
in

an
ce

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

is
su

es
 (

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 is

su
es

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 in
 b

ol
d)

. W
e 

m
ad

e 
17

 h
ig

h 
pr

io
rit

y 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
. M

y 
fin

di
ng

s 
ar

e 
se

t o
ut

 b
el

ow
:  

!
T

h
er

e 
w

as
 a

 f
ai

lu
re

 t
o

 a
d

eq
u

at
el

y 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

e 
kn

o
w

n
 c

o
n

ce
rn

s 
ab

o
u

t 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

p
an

y 
aw

ar
d

ed
 t

h
e 

o
ri

g
in

al
 

co
n

tr
ac

t 
to

 m
em

b
er

s 
an

d
 le

g
al

 o
ff

ic
er

s 
an

d
 t

h
e 

co
n

tr
ac

t 
w

as
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 b

y 
m

em
b

er
s 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

th
is

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e.

!
O

ffi
ce

rs
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

an
 e

xt
er

na
l c

re
di

t r
ep

or
t o

n 
28

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

9 
th

at
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t f
in

an
ci

al
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f t
he

 o
rig

in
al

 
C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
an

d 
th

at
 s

ta
te

d 
th

er
e 

w
as

 a
 v

er
y 

hi
gh

 li
ke

lih
oo

d 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
fa

ilu
re

. T
he

 r
es

ul
ts

 o
f t

he
 c

re
di

t r
ep

or
t w

er
e 

di
sc

us
se

d 
by

 
T

ec
hn

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
of

fic
er

s,
 F

in
an

ce
 (

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t)
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

it 
w

as
 a

gr
ee

d 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

e 
ap

pr
ov

al
of

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

to
 m

em
be

rs
. T

ec
hn

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
of

fic
er

s 
ha

ve
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 th
at

 th
er

e 
w

er
e 

no
 m

in
ut

es
 ta

ke
n 

at
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
th

at
 

de
ci

de
d 

on
 th

e 
se

le
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r.
  

!
T

he
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
to

 a
w

ar
d 

th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

w
or

k 
to

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

w
as

 m
ad

e 
in

 a
 r

ep
or

t f
ro

m
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 C
ab

in
et

da
te

d 
5 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

09
. T

he
re

 is
 n

o 
m

en
tio

n 
in

 th
is

 C
ab

in
et

 r
ep

or
t n

or
 a

ny
 s

up
pl

em
en

t i
ss

ue
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

ce
ip

t o
f t

he
 c

re
di

t r
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 
se

rio
us

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

tu
s 

an
d 

th
e 

ve
ry

 h
ig

h 
lik

el
ih

oo
d 

of
 b

us
in

es
s 

fa
ilu

re
 o

f t
he

 c
om

pa
ny

. T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 in
 

th
e 

m
in

ut
es

 o
f t

he
 C

ab
in

et
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

at
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 in

fo
rm

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 r
is

ks
 a

t t
he

 m
ee

tin
g 

its
el

f. 
 

!
M

em
be

rs
 w

er
e 

as
ke

d 
to

 a
gr

ee
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
to

 a
w

ar
d 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 to
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
w

ith
ou

t b
ei

ng
 g

iv
en

 th
e 

de
ta

ils
 th

at
 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

en
ab

le
d 

th
em

 to
 m

ak
e 

an
 in

fo
rm

ed
 d

ec
is

io
n.

 

!
S

ec
tio

n 
3.

4 
of

 th
e 

re
po

rt
 s

ta
te

s 
‘th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t U
ni

t h
av

e 
be

en
 c

on
su

lte
d 

an
d 

ar
e 

sa
tis

fie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fo
r 

th
is

 s
ch

em
e.

’ T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 a
ny

 le
ga

l a
dv

ic
e 

ob
ta

in
ed

 a
nd

 n
o 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

m
in

ut
es

 th
at

 m
em

be
rs

 s
ou

gh
t 

th
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
of

 L
eg

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

 T
he

 G
ro

up
 S

ol
ic

ito
r 

w
as

 n
ot

ifi
ed

 b
y 

T
ec

hn
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

of
 th

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 o

n 
3 

A
pr

il 
20

09
, n

ea
rly

 tw
o 

m
on

th
s 

af
te

r 
th

e 
aw

ar
d 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 a

nd
 n

ea
rly

 a
 m

on
th

 a
fte

r 
w

or
k 

ha
d 

st
ar

te
d 

on
 s

ite
. 

Page 69



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
6

!
C

P
R

 1
5.

3(
ix

) 
re

q
u

ir
es

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

co
n

tr
ac

t 
p

ro
vi

d
es

 f
o

r 
a 

B
o

n
d

. A
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 t

h
e 

co
n

tr
ac

t 
d

id
 a

sk
 f

o
r 

o
n

e,
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l d

id
 n

o
t 

o
b

ta
in

 a
 B

o
n

d
.

!
A

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
lit

er
al

 in
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 C

P
R

 1
5.

3(
ix

) 
w

as
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

, t
he

 in
te

nt
 o

f t
he

 C
P

R
 w

as
 n

ot
 a

s 
a 

B
on

d 
w

as
 n

ot
 o

bt
ai

ne
d.

 T
he

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f t
hi

s 
w

as
 n

ot
 e

vi
de

nt
 to

 L
eg

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

un
til

 3
 A

pr
il 

20
09

 a
nd

 s
ho

rt
ly

 a
fte

r 
th

is
 th

e 
co

m
pa

ny
 a

ba
nd

on
ed

 th
e 

si
te

 a
nd

 w
en

t 
in

to
 li

qu
id

at
io

n.
  

!
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
ex

ec
ut

io
n 

of
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

 a
nd

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

B
on

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

28
 d

ay
 p

er
io

d 
it 

is
 u

su
al

 th
at

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
 a

re
 n

ot
 

al
lo

w
ed

 p
os

se
ss

io
n 

of
 th

e 
si

te
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

B
on

d 
ha

s 
be

en
 o

bt
ai

ne
d.

 F
ro

m
 o

ur
 r

ev
ie

w
 it

 is
 n

ot
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

st
ar

te
d 

on
 s

ite
 

on
 9

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
9 

w
ith

ou
t a

 B
on

d 
an

d 
w

ith
ou

t a
n 

ag
re

em
en

t a
bo

ut
 s

ec
ur

ity
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 w
er

e 
no

t r
et

ur
ne

d 
un

til
12

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
9 

no
r 

si
gn

ed
 u

nt
il 

20
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9 
an

d 
th

is
 fu

rt
he

r 
ra

is
es

 r
is

ks
.  

!
A

s 
no

te
d 

ab
ov

e,
 th

e 
in

te
nt

 o
f C

P
R

 1
5.

3(
ix

) 
w

as
 n

ot
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 a
nd

 it
 s

ho
ul

d 
ha

ve
 tr

ig
ge

re
d 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f C

P
R

s 
in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 o
bt

ai
ni

ng
 a

 
B

on
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

ar
ou

nd
 th

is
 e

xa
m

pl
e.

  

!
T

he
 la

te
st

 v
er

si
on

 o
f C

P
R

s 
(1

7 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
1)

 n
ow

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
th

at
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 C

ab
in

et
 P

or
tfo

lio
 h

ol
de

r 
m

us
t b

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 
C

P
R

 d
oe

s 
no

t s
ta

te
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 w

he
n 

th
e 

bo
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

it 
do

es
 n

ot
 s

pe
ci

fy
 w

ha
t c

on
st

itu
te

s 
‘s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 s
ec

ur
ity

’. 
T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

re
la

te
 to

 p
ar

en
t c

om
pa

ny
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

s,
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

ta
ng

ib
le

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. 

!
A

lth
ou

gh
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 m

ad
e 

en
qu

iri
es

 a
s 

to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 th

e 
bo

di
es

 te
nd

er
in

g 
un

de
r 

C
P

R
 7

.1
 a

t t
he

 In
vi

ta
tio

n 
to

 T
en

de
r 

(I
T

T
) 

st
ag

e,
 th

e 
pr

em
is

e 
th

at
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
nl

in
e 

(a
 s

el
ec

t l
is

t)
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
lie

d 
on

 fo
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

nd
in

g 
w

as
 n

ot
 r

el
ia

bl
e 

at
 th

e 
tim

e.
 

!
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
re

ta
in

ed
 £

48
8,

42
4 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f a
n 

en
gi

ne
er

’s
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 w

or
k 

do
ne

 b
y 

th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

pr
io

r 
to

 a
ba

nd
on

m
en

t. 
T

he
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

ce
rt

ifi
es

 th
e 

co
st

s 
fo

r 
co

m
pl

et
in

g 
th

e 
w

or
ks

 a
s 

£3
50

,8
11

. O
ffi

ce
rs

 p
la

n 
to

 p
ut

 a
 c

as
e 

to
 C

ab
in

et
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r 

£1
37

,6
13

 o
f t

hi
s 

as
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
w

or
k 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
le

ss
 th

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l c

os
t o

f c
om

pl
et

in
g 

th
e 

w
or

ks
 w

ith
 a

no
th

er
 c

on
tr

ac
to

r.
 W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 a

w
ai

tin
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fr
om

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

at
 th

e 
liq

ui
da

to
r 

ha
s 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n.
  

!
A

 C
ab

in
et

 R
ep

or
t o

n 
23

 J
ul

y 
20

09
 u

pd
at

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ac

t a
nd

 in
fo

rm
ed

 th
em

 fo
rm

al
ly

 th
at

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

ha
d 

ab
an

do
ne

d 
th

e 
si

te
 o

n 
24

 A
pr

il 
20

09
. T

he
 r

ep
or

t s
ta

te
s 

th
at

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 c

on
tr

ac
to

r 
w

as
 r

ep
or

te
d 

ve
rb

al
ly

 to
 C

ab
in

et
 o

n 
23

 A
pr

il 
20

09
 

an
d 

ap
pr

ov
al

 w
as

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

 a
pp

oi
nt

 a
no

th
er

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 th
e 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

C
on

tr
ac

t a
t t

ha
t m

ee
tin

g.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
re

 is
 n

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 

of
 a

ny
 s

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 p
ap

er
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 th

at
 m

ee
tin

g 
to

 e
xp

la
in

 th
e 

si
tu

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
fo

rm
al

 M
in

ut
e 

49
3 

on
 W

es
t K

irb
y 

M
ar

in
e 

La
ke

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
go

 in
to

 th
e 

de
ta

il 
of

 w
ha

t w
as

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 o

r 
ap

pr
ov

ed
: ‘

T
he

 D
ire

ct
or

 o
f T

ec
hn

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
re

po
rt

ed
 u

po
n 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 m
at

te
rs

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 W

es
t 

K
irb

y 
M

ar
in

e 
La

ke
. R

es
ol

ve
d 

– 
T

ha
t t

he
 r

ep
or

t b
e 

no
te

d 
an

d 
th

e 
ac

tio
n 

pr
op

os
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f T

ec
hn

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
be

 e
nd

or
se

d.
’  

It 
is

 
im

po
rt

an
t t

ha
t m

em
be

rs
’ d

ec
is

io
ns

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

ls
 a

re
 e

xp
la

in
ed

 a
nd

 fo
rm

al
ly

 n
ot

ed
 in

 th
e 

m
in

ut
es

 o
f m

ee
tin

gs
.

Page 70



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
7

!
T

he
 2

3 
Ju

ly
 2

00
9 

C
ab

in
et

 r
ep

or
t s

ta
te

d 
at

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 3

.4
: ‘

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

th
ird

 w
ee

k 
of

 A
pr

il 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
re

ce
iv

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
th

at
 (

th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 
C

on
tr

ac
to

rs
) 

w
er

e 
in

 s
er

io
us

 fi
na

nc
ia

l d
iff

ic
ul

ty
’. 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s 
is

 n
ot

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 u

nd
er

ly
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
th

at
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 d

iff
ic

ul
tie

s 
w

er
e 

kn
ow

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
28

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

2 
cr

ed
it 

re
po

rt
. 

!
C

P
R

16
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

th
at

 v
ar

ia
tio

ns
 to

 a
 c

on
tr

ac
t i

n 
ex

ce
ss

 o
f 1

0%
 (

or
 £

50
,0

00
, w

hi
ch

ev
er

 is
 th

e 
lo

w
er

) 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 C

ab
in

et
. T

he
 e

st
im

at
ed

 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 fo
r 

th
e 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t c
on

su
lta

nt
s 

w
as

 £
10

0,
00

0 
(o

ut
tu

rn
 £

19
2,

79
3)

. O
ffi

ce
rs

 n
ee

d 
to

 c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 v
ar

ia
tio

ns
 fo

r 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

’s
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 s
ch

em
e 

w
er

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 C
P

R
 1

6.
2,

 w
ith

 a
 w

rit
te

n 
re

po
rt

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 to

 th
e 

ne
xt

 m
ee

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
C

ab
in

et
. 

!
C

P
R

s 
w

er
e 

up
da

te
d 

in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
1 

bu
t d

o 
no

t r
ef

le
ct

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f t
en

de
re

rs
’ t

ec
hn

ic
al

 o
r 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 a
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

ec
on

om
ic

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

ov
er

 £
50

,0
00

 a
nd

 b
el

ow
 th

e 
E

U
 th

re
sh

ol
d.

 

!
T

ec
hn

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 s

ta
te

 th
at

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
w

as
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

ad
ve

rs
e 

cr
ed

it 
re

po
rt

 p
rio

r 
to

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f t

he
 o

rig
in

al
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
by

 
m

em
be

rs
. I

nt
er

na
l a

ud
it 

is
 n

ow
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 a
ll 

fin
an

ci
al

 e
va

lu
at

io
ns

 o
f p

ro
sp

ec
tiv

e 
te

nd
er

er
s 

an
d 

ca
rr

ie
s 

ou
t a

 fu
ll 

ra
tio

 a
na

ly
si

s 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f 

w
or

ks
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

. T
he

 r
ol

e 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
is

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 to
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 m

em
be

rs
 th

at
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 c

he
ck

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
an

d 
it 

is
 th

e 
ro

le
 o

f t
he

 C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r,
 w

ith
 h

el
p 

fr
om

 F
in

an
ce

 to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 a
nd

 d
ra

w
 c

on
cl

us
io

ns
 fr

om
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 e

va
lu

at
io

ns
.

(2
) 

S
u

re
 s

ta
rt

, e
ar

ly
 y

ea
rs

 a
n

d
 c

h
ild

ca
re

 g
ra

n
t 

(S
S

E
Y

C
G

) 
an

d
 a

im
in

g
 h

ig
h

 f
o

r 
d

is
ab

le
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
 g

ra
n

t 
(A

H
D

C
G

)

A
 q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
n 

le
tte

r 
w

as
 r

ai
se

d 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 I 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o 

ra
is

ed
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ep

ut
y 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

an
d 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

F
in

an
ce

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 is
su

es
. W

e 
m

ad
e 

6 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 (

1 
hi

gh
 p

rio
rit

y 
an

d 
5 

m
ed

iu
m

 p
rio

rit
y)

. M
y 

fin
di

ng
s 

ar
e 

se
t o

ut
 b

el
ow

: 

!
E

lig
ib

le
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 c

la
im

ed
 fo

r 
2 

Y
ea

r 
O

ld
 O

ffe
r 

E
ar

ly
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 e
xc

ee
de

d 
th

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

by
 £

13
,4

36
.  

!
D

ur
in

g 
ou

r 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
w

or
k 

w
e 

ra
is

ed
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ab
ou

t t
he

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

sc
ho

ol
 fo

r 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 w

or
k 

in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

el
ig

ib
le

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 a
s 

on
e 

of
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

or
s 

w
as

 a
w

ar
de

d 
th

e 
w

or
k.

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
fic

er
s 

ha
ve

 in
fo

rm
ed

 u
s 

th
at

 th
e 

ar
ch

ite
ct

’s
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

G
re

at
 

M
eo

ls
 P

rim
ar

y 
pr

oj
ec

t w
er

e 
pr

oc
ur

ed
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

ap
pl

yi
ng

 to
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
co

nt
ro

l o
f t

he
 s

ch
oo

l g
ov

er
ni

ng
 b

od
y.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

 a
 C

ab
in

et
 r

ep
or

t f
ro

m
 M

ay
 2

01
0 

th
at

 c
on

fir
m

s 
th

at
 th

e 
P

re
sc

ho
ol

 p
ro

vi
de

r 
w

as
 to

 m
ak

e 
a 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 a
ls

o 
re

tr
os

pe
ct

iv
el

y 
re

po
rt

s 
th

at
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 g

av
e 

ag
re

em
en

t t
o 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
in

g 
bo

dy
 to

 a
pp

oi
nt

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t a

rc
hi

te
ct

. O
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
no

w
 

st
at

ed
 th

at
 th

is
 it

em
 s

ho
ul

d 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
m

ov
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

sa
m

pl
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
as

 it
 w

as
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
to

 h
av

e 
be

en
 fu

nd
ed

 fr
om

 o
th

er
 s

tr
ea

m
s.

 It
 is

 
im

po
rt

an
t t

ha
t: 

!
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t b
y 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
sc

ho
ol

s 
is

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 d

el
eg

at
ed

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
. 

!
th

er
e 

ar
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
no

 d
up

lic
at

e 
cl

ai
m

s 
fo

r 
fu

nd
in

g 
ca

n 
be

 m
ad

e 
an

d 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f d

ou
bl

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
an

d 
du

pl
ic

at
io

n 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 c
la

im
s.

Page 71



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
8

!
el

ig
ib

le
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 fo

r 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
ca

n 
be

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

an
d 

au
di

t s
am

pl
in

g 
pu

rp
os

es
 s

ep
ar

at
el

y 
fr

om
 th

at
 

fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 s
ou

rc
es

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

di
ffe

re
nt

 c
on

di
tio

ns
. 

!
th

er
e 

w
as

 n
o 

in
ve

nt
or

y 
of

 a
ss

et
s 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 a
de

qu
at

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 fu
lfi

l t
he

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f g
ra

nt
 fu

nd
in

g 
i.e

. m
on

ito
rin

g 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
as

se
ts

 fu
nd

ed
, o

r 
an

y 
di

sp
os

al
s 

as
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
 A

nn
ex

 D
, p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
4 

of
 M

em
or

an
du

m
 o

f G
ra

nt
 a

nd
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
6 

of
 th

e 
S

S
E

Y
C

G
 c

ap
ita

l
gu

id
an

ce
 (

Ju
ly

 2
01

1)
. 

!
C

Y
P

 h
ad

 n
ot

 a
gr

ee
d 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
a 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

re
po

rt
 o

n 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
C

en
tr

es
 E

xt
en

de
d 

S
er

vi
ce

pr
ov

is
io

n 
th

at
 in

cl
ud

ed
 1

4 
hi

gh
 p

rio
rit

y 
ris

k 
ob

se
rv

at
io

ns
. I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

fo
llo

w
ed

 u
p 

its
 o

rig
in

al
 r

ep
or

t i
n 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

an
d 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
th

at
 1

2 
of

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
no

w
 b

ee
n 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 2

 b
ei

ng
 p

ar
tly

 im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 

Page 72



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
9

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
ar

is
in

g
 f

ro
m

 m
y 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e 
tw

o
 

re
m

ai
n

in
g

 c
la

im
s 

an
d

 t
h

e 
ac

ti
o

n
s 

ag
re

ed
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
. 

T
ab

le
 2

: 
S

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
su

p
p

le
m

en
ta

ry
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

ar
is

in
g

 f
ro

m
 2

01
0/

11
 c

er
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

A
g

re
ed

 a
ct

io
n

 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

 

(1
) 

F
lo

o
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
as

ta
l e

ro
si

o
n

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t
17

 h
ig

h
 

 
 

 

R
ep

o
rt

in
g

 t
o

 m
em

b
er

s,
  r

ec
o

rd
in

g
 a

n
d

 
ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
 

 
 

 

R
1.

 E
ns

ur
e 

m
em

be
rs

 h
av

e 
co

m
pl

et
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t r
is

ks
 a

nd
 h

ow
 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
be

en
 m

iti
ga

te
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

m
ak

e 
ro

bu
st

 a
nd

 s
af

e 
de

ci
si

on
s.

 

H
ig

h 
In

st
ru

ct
io

ns
 o

n 
co

nt
en

t o
f r

ep
or

ts
 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
ris

ks
) 

to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
, 

re
vi

se
d 

an
d 

re
-is

su
ed

. 

R
ep

or
t a

ut
ho

rs
 (

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
) 

to
 

en
su

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
. 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

B
ill

 N
or

m
an

 

D
ire

ct
or

 L
H

R
A

M
 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 

R
2.

 E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 m
em

be
rs

’ d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

nd
 

ap
pr

ov
al

s 
ar

e 
ex

pl
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

fo
rm

al
ly

 
no

te
d 

in
 th

e 
m

in
ut

es
 o

f m
ee

tin
gs

 (
in

 th
is

 
ca

se
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 th
e 

ve
rb

al
 u

pd
at

e 
to

 
C

ab
in

et
 in

 A
pr

il 
20

09
) 

H
ig

h 
A

ll 
m

ee
tin

gs
 a

re
 fo

rm
al

ly
 r

ec
or

de
d 

an
d 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

e 
so

 w
hi

ls
t 

ha
vi

ng
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 ‘e
xe

m
pt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n’

. 

O
n-

go
in

g 
S

ur
jit

 T
ou

r 

Le
ga

l &
 M

em
be

r 
S

er
vi

ce
s

Page 73



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
10

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

A
g

re
ed

 a
ct

io
n

 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

 

R
3.

 E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 r
ep

or
ts

 c
on

ta
in

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
th

at
 is

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 

un
de

rly
in

g 
ev

id
en

ce
 to

 h
el

p 
m

em
be

rs
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 a

ny
 r

is
ks

 to
 a

id
 d

ec
is

io
n-

m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f t

he
 

co
nt

ro
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 

H
ig

h 
A

s 
w

ith
 R

1.
 

In
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 o
n 

co
nt

en
t o

f r
ep

or
ts

 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

ris
ks

) 
to

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

, 
re

vi
se

d 
an

d 
re

-is
su

ed
. 

R
ep

or
t a

ut
ho

rs
 (

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
) 

to
 

en
su

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
. 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

B
ill

 N
or

m
an

 

D
ire

ct
or

 L
H

R
A

M
 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 

R
4.

 E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

ad
vi

ce
 o

f L
eg

al
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
is

 s
ou

gh
t a

nd
 r

ep
or

te
d 

to
 

m
em

be
rs

 b
ef

or
e 

de
ci

si
on

s 
ar

e 
m

ad
e.

 

H
ig

h 
A

s 
R

1 
an

d 
R

3.
 

In
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 o
n 

co
nt

en
t o

f r
ep

or
ts

, a
nd

 
ne

ed
 to

 in
vo

lv
e 

le
ga

l s
er

vi
ce

s,
 to

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

, r
ev

is
ed

 a
nd

 r
e-

is
su

ed
. 

R
ep

or
t a

ut
ho

rs
 (

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
) 

to
 

en
su

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
. 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

B
ill

 N
or

m
an

 

D
ire

ct
or

 L
H

R
A

M
 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 

R
5.

 E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 k
ey

 ju
dg

em
en

ts
, b

y 
of

fic
er

s 
ar

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 r
ec

or
de

d 
- 

su
ch

 
as

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

 to
 a

w
ar

d 
th

e 
te

nd
er

 to
 

th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

de
sp

ite
 th

e 
ris

ks
 

id
en

tif
ie

d

H
ig

h 
Li

nk
s 

to
 R

1.
 

In
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 o
n 

co
nt

en
t o

f r
ep

or
ts

 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

of
fic

er
 ju

dg
em

en
ts

) 
to

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

, r
ev

is
ed

 a
nd

 r
e-

is
su

ed
. 

R
ep

or
t a

ut
ho

rs
 (

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
) 

to
 

en
su

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
. 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

B
ill

 N
or

m
an

 

D
ire

ct
or

 L
H

R
A

M
 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 

F
it

 f
o

r 
p

u
rp

o
se

 C
P

R
s 

 
 

 
 

R
6.

 E
ns

ur
e 

C
P

R
s 

ar
e 

up
da

te
d 

an
d 

re
vi

se
d 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

fin
al

 c
he

ck
 o

f 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
nd

in
g 

an
d 

te
ch

ni
ca

l a
bi

lit
y 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 p
rio

r 
to

 th
e 

aw
ar

d 
of

 a
 

co
nt

ra
ct

.

H
ig

h 
C

on
tr

ac
t P

ro
ce

du
re

 R
ul

es
 to

 b
e 

en
ha

nc
ed

 –
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

C
ab

in
et

 o
n 

C
on

st
itu

tio
n 

ch
an

ge
s.

 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

2 
S

ur
jit

 T
ou

r 

Le
ga

l &
 M

em
be

r 
S

er
vi

ce
s

(w
ith

 R
ay

 W
ill

ia
m

s 

Page 74



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
11

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

A
g

re
ed

 a
ct

io
n

 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t)
 

R
7.

 E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 C
P

R
s:

 

(i)
 a

re
 c

le
ar

 a
bo

ut
 w

he
n 

th
e 

B
on

d 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 

(ii
) 

ar
e 

cl
ea

r 
ab

ou
t a

nd
 r

ec
or

d 
w

ha
t 

co
ns

tit
ut

es
 ‘s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 s
ec

ur
ity

’ w
he

n 
th

e 
st

an
da

rd
 B

on
d 

is
 n

ot
 o

bt
ai

ne
d.

 

H
ig

h 
A

s 
w

ith
 R

6.
 

C
on

tr
ac

t P
ro

ce
du

re
 R

ul
es

 to
 b

e 
en

ha
nc

ed
 –

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
C

ab
in

et
 o

n 
C

on
st

itu
tio

n 
ch

an
ge

s.
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

2 
S

ur
jit

 T
ou

r 

Le
ga

l &
 M

em
be

r 
S

er
vi

ce
s

(w
ith

 R
ay

 W
ill

ia
m

s 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t)

 

R
8.

 E
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

C
P

R
s 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 in
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

1 
ar

e 
up

da
te

d 
to

 r
ef

le
ct

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
te

nd
er

er
s’

 te
ch

ni
ca

l o
r 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
 a

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
an

di
ng

 fo
r 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
ov

er
 £

50
k 

an
d 

be
lo

w
 th

e 
E

U
 th

re
sh

ol
d.

 

H
ig

h 
A

s 
w

ith
 R

6.
 

C
on

tr
ac

t P
ro

ce
du

re
 R

ul
es

 to
 b

e 
en

ha
nc

ed
 –

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
C

ab
in

et
 o

n 
C

on
st

itu
tio

n 
ch

an
ge

s.
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

2 
S

ur
jit

 T
ou

r 

Le
ga

l &
 M

em
be

r 
S

er
vi

ce
s

(w
ith

 R
ay

 W
ill

ia
m

s 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t)

 

R
9.

 E
ns

ur
e 

al
l C

P
R

s 
ar

e 
fit

 fo
r 

pu
rp

os
e 

an
d 

no
n-

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

is
 p

ro
m

pt
ly

, c
le

ar
ly

 
an

d 
un

am
bi

gu
ou

sl
y 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 

m
em

be
rs

. 

H
ig

h 
A

s 
w

ith
 R

6.
 

C
on

tr
ac

t P
ro

ce
du

re
 R

ul
es

 to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 –

 
re

po
rt

 to
 C

ab
in

et
 o

n 
C

on
st

itu
tio

n 
ch

an
ge

s.

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

2 
S

ur
jit

 T
ou

r 

Le
ga

l &
 M

em
be

r 
S

er
vi

ce
s

(w
ith

 R
ay

 W
ill

ia
m

s 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t)

 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 w

it
h

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
 

 
 

 

R
10

. E
ns

ur
e 

‘a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

’ e
nq

ui
rie

s 
ar

e 
m

ad
e 

on
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
nd

in
g 

un
de

r 
C

P
R

 
7.

1 
by

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

de
ta

ile
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
be

fo
re

 is
su

in
g 

in
vi

ta
tio

ns
 to

 te
nd

er
.  

E
ns

ur
e 

th
is

 is
 c

le
ar

ly
 d

oc
um

en
te

d 
an

d 

H
ig

h 
Li

nk
s 

to
 R

6.
 

C
P

R
ul

es
 to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 a
ll 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t T
oo

lk
it.

 

C
om

m
en

ci
ng

 fr
om

 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 

(w
ith

 R
ay

 W
ill

ia
m

s 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t)

 

Page 75



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
12

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

A
g

re
ed

 a
ct

io
n

 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

 

ev
id

en
ce

 r
et

ai
ne

d 
fo

r 
re

vi
ew

.  
U

pd
at

e 
th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

nd
in

g 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 b

ef
or

e 
ap

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

aw
ar

d 
of

 th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

. 

R
11

. C
on

fir
m

 th
at

 th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

va
ria

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

’s
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

as
 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 C

P
R

 1
6.

2,
 w

ith
 a

 w
rit

te
n 

re
po

rt
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 to
 th

e 
ne

xt
 m

ee
tin

g 
of

 
th

e 
C

ab
in

et
. 

H
ig

h 
R

ep
or

t t
o 

C
ab

in
et

. 
Ju

ly
 2

01
2 

M
ar

k 
S

m
ith

 

D
ep

ut
y 

D
ire

ct
or

 O
f 

T
ec

hn
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

R
12

. O
bt

ai
n 

th
e 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f F
in

an
ce

 w
he

n 
of

fic
er

s 
w

ai
ve

 
a 

B
on

d 
an

d 
en

su
re

 it
 is

 r
ep

or
te

d 
to

 
m

em
be

rs
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 C
P

R
 1

5.
3(

ix
).

 

H
ig

h 
Li

nk
s 

to
 R

7.
 

C
P

R
ul

es
 to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 a
ll 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t T
oo

lk
it.

 

C
om

m
en

ci
ng

 fr
om

 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 

(w
ith

 D
ire

ct
or

 O
f 

F
in

an
ce

)

R
13

. D
o 

no
t a

llo
w

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
 p

os
se

ss
io

n 
of

 th
e 

si
te

 u
nt

il 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 B
on

d 
is

 
ob

ta
in

ed
, a

ny
 P

ar
en

t C
om

pa
ny

 
G

ua
ra

nt
ee

 is
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
is

 s
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

ex
ec

ut
ed

. W
he

re
 th

is
 is

 n
ot

 
pr

ac
tic

al
, e

ns
ur

e 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

pr
op

er
 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 m
iti

ga
te

 a
ny

 r
is

ks
, 

ju
dg

em
en

ts
 a

re
 r

ec
or

de
d 

an
d 

de
ci

si
on

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

an
d 

re
po

rt
ed

. 

H
ig

h 
Li

nk
s 

to
 R

7 

C
P

R
ul

es
 to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 to

 a
ll 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t T
oo

lk
it.

 

C
om

m
en

ci
ng

 fr
om

 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 

(w
ith

 D
ire

ct
or

s 
O

f 
F

in
an

ce
 &

 L
H

R
A

M
) 

R
14

. E
ns

ur
e 

al
l r

el
ev

an
t s

ta
ff 

an
d 

m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 p
ro

pe
rly

 tr
ai

ne
d 

to
 d

ea
l 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 w
ith

 C
P

R
s.

 

H
ig

h 
C

P
R

ul
es

 to
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 to
 a

ll 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 a
lo

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t T

oo
lk

it.
 

C
om

m
en

ci
ng

 fr
om

 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 

(w
ith

 R
ay

 W
ill

ia
m

s 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t)
 

Page 76



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
13

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

A
g

re
ed

 a
ct

io
n

 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

 

T
ra

in
in

g 
on

 C
P

R
’s

 to
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
M

em
be

r‘s
  p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

S
ur

jit
 T

ou
r 

Le
ga

l a
nd

 M
em

be
r 

S
er

vi
ce

s

R
15

. C
la

rif
y 

th
e 

ro
le

 o
f I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

in
 

th
e 

ev
en

ts
 a

ro
un

d 
th

is
 c

on
tr

ac
t. 

H
ig

h 
R

ep
or

t t
o 

C
ab

in
et

. 
Ju

ly
 2

01
2 

D
av

id
 T

ay
lo

r-
S

m
ith

 

D
ep

ut
y 

D
ire

ct
or

 O
f 

F
in

an
ce

R
16

. E
ns

ur
e 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 ta

ke
 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
ca

rr
yi

ng
 o

ut
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

ch
ec

ks
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 C
P

R
s 

an
d 

In
te

rn
al

 
A

ud
it 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 th

es
e 

ch
ec

ks
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e.
 

H
ig

h 
C

P
R

ul
es

 to
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 to
 a

ll 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 a
lo

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t T

oo
lk

it.
 

C
om

m
en

ci
ng

 fr
om

 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 

(w
ith

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it)
 

R
17

. E
ns

ur
e 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 th
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
ar

e 
no

tif
ie

d 
of

 th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
f d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 w

ith
 th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
or

s 
of

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

ov
er

 th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 v
al

ue
 d

ue
 (

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 in
cl

ud
ed

 e
lig

ib
le

 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 o
f £

13
7,

61
3 

in
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

).
 

H
ig

h 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t A
ge

nc
y 

to
 b

e 
ke

pt
 

in
fo

rm
ed

.
O

n-
go

in
g 

M
ar

k 
S

m
ith

 

D
ep

ut
y 

D
ire

ct
or

 O
f 

T
ec

hn
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

 
 

 
 

 

(2
) 

S
u

re
 s

ta
rt

, e
ar

ly
 y

ea
rs

 a
n

d
 

ch
ild

ca
re

 g
ra

n
t 

an
d

 a
im

in
g

 h
ig

h
 f

o
r 

d
is

ab
le

d
 c

h
ild

re
n

 g
ra

n
t 

1 
h

ig
h

 

5 
m

ed
iu

m
 

 
 

 

Page 77



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
14

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

A
g

re
ed

 a
ct

io
n

 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

 

R
18

. E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 e
lig

ib
le

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
cl

ai
m

ed
 d

oe
s 

no
t e

xc
ee

d 
rin

g-
fe

nc
ed

 
fu

nd
in

g 
al

lo
ca

tio
ns

. 

M
ed

iu
m

 
In

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f t

he
se

 a
re

as
 th

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 w
er

e 
fo

llo
w

ed
 b

ut
 c

ou
ld

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

be
tte

r 
ev

id
en

ce
d.

 

O
n-

go
in

g 
A

nd
re

w
 R

ob
er

ts
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e

R
19

. P
ro

vi
de

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

or
 in

tr
od

uc
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
no

 d
up

lic
at

e 
cl

ai
m

s 
fo

r 
fu

nd
in

g 
ca

n 
be

 m
ad

e 
an

d 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f d

ou
bl

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
an

d 
du

pl
ic

at
io

n 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 c
la

im
s.

 

H
ig

h 
T

he
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
ex

is
t b

ut
 th

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 

fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s 

m
ak

e 
th

is
 c

om
pl

ex
. 

N
o 

du
pl

ic
at

e 
cl

ai
m

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e.

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

or
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 c

la
im

s.
 

O
n-

go
in

g 
A

nd
re

w
 R

ob
er

ts
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e

R
20

. E
ns

ur
e 

el
ig

ib
le

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 fo
r 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

ca
n 

be
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

an
d 

au
di

t 
sa

m
pl

in
g 

pu
rp

os
es

 s
ep

ar
at

el
y 

fr
om

 th
at

 
fu

nd
ed

 fr
om

 o
th

er
 s

ou
rc

es
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
di

ffe
re

nt
 c

on
di

tio
ns

. 

M
ed

iu
m

 
T

he
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
ex

is
t b

ut
 th

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 

fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s 

m
ak

e 
th

is
 c

om
pl

ex
. 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
or

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 c
la

im
s.

 

O
n-

go
in

g 
A

nd
re

w
 R

ob
er

ts
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e

R
21

. E
ns

ur
e 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
 a

ss
et

 
re

co
rd

s 
to

 a
llo

w
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 a

ll 
as

se
ts

 
fu

nd
ed

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
as

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 
A

nn
ex

 D
, p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
4 

of
 M

em
or

an
du

m
 

of
 G

ra
nt

 a
nd

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

6 
of

 th
e 

S
S

E
Y

C
G

 c
ap

ita
l g

ui
da

nc
e.

 

M
ed

iu
m

 
A

ss
et

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

gu
id

an
ce

. 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

12
 

A
nd

re
w

 R
ob

er
ts

 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e

R
22

. E
ns

ur
e 

pr
om

pt
 r

es
po

ns
es

 to
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
re

po
rt

s 
an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
. 

M
ed

iu
m

 
A

cr
os

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 to
 

en
su

re
 a

ct
io

n 
ta

ke
n 

(I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
re

po
rt

 to
 A

ud
it 

&
 R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
ac

tio
ns

).
 

Ju
ly

 2
01

2 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 

R
23

. C
on

si
de

r 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
of

 th
e 

ar
ch

ite
ct

’s
 fe

es
 w

as
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

R
ev

ie
w

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

by
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

e 
S

ch
oo

l h
ad

 fo
llo

w
ed

 
M

ay
 2

01
2 

D
av

id
 G

ar
ry

 

C
hi

ef
 In

te
rn

al
 

Page 78



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
15

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

A
g

re
ed

 a
ct

io
n

 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

 

de
le

ga
te

d 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

t G
re

at
 M

eo
ls

 
S

ch
oo

l.
th

ei
r 

de
le

ga
te

d 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. 

A
ud

ito
r 

Page 79



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
16

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 f

ee
s 

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 u
p

d
at

es
 t

h
e 

fe
es

 a
ri

si
n

g
 f

ro
m

 m
y 

20
10

/1
1 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t

h
e 

re
as

o
n

s 
fo

r 
an

y 
si

g
n

if
ic

an
t 

ch
an

g
es

 in
 t

h
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

fe
es

 f
ro

m
 2

00
9/

10
. 

T
ab

le
 3

: 
S

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 f
ee

s 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
20

10
/1

1 
fe

e 
@

 
A

p
ri

l 2
01

2 
(£

) 
20

09
/1

0 
fe

e 
(£

) 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

ch
an

g
es

 in
 f

ee
 g

re
at

er
 

th
an

 +
/-

 1
0 

p
er

 c
en

t 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

be
ne

fit
 s

ch
em

e 
57

,6
32

.2
5 

68
,3

87
.7

5 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 4

0+
 te

st
in

g 
an

d 
of

fic
er

 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 q
ue

rie
s 

N
at

io
na

l n
on

-d
om

es
tic

 r
at

es
 r

et
ur

n 
6,

40
5.

75
 

2,
66

5.
00

 
P

ar
t A

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 2

00
9/

10
; P

ar
t A

 a
nd

 
B

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 2

01
0/

11
 

T
ea

ch
er

s’
 p

en
si

on
s 

re
tu

rn
 

3,
06

0.
00

 
29

37
.5

0 
N

/A
 

S
ur

e 
st

ar
t, 

ea
rly

 y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 c

hi
ld

ca
re

 g
ra

nt
 a

nd
 a

im
in

g 
hi

gh
 fo

r 
di

sa
bl

ed
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

gr
an

t 
9,

68
1.

50
 

8,
07

2.
50

 
M

or
e 

co
m

pl
ex

 is
su

es
 fo

un
d 

du
rin

g 
ou

r 
w

or
k

D
is

ab
le

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

1,
71

6.
00

 
0 

N
o 

gr
an

t 2
00

9/
10

 

H
ou

si
ng

 s
ub

si
di

es
 a

nd
 g

ra
nt

s 
0 

16
62

.5
0 

N
o 

gr
an

t 2
01

0/
11

 

F
lo

od
 a

nd
 c

oa
st

al
 e

ro
si

on
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
16

,1
54

.0
0 

0 
N

o 
gr

an
t 2

00
9/

10
 

S
in

gl
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

– 
4 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
10

,7
20

.1
5 

13
,2

87
.5

0 
M

or
e 

co
m

pl
ex

 is
su

es
 fo

un
d 

du
rin

g 
ou

r 
w

or
k 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 c

la
im

s 
re

qu
iri

ng
 

am
en

dm
en

t 

Page 80



A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 2
01

0/
11

 
17

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
20

10
/1

1 
fe

e 
@

 
A

p
ri

l 2
01

2 
(£

) 
20

09
/1

0 
fe

e 
(£

) 
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

ch
an

g
es

 in
 f

ee
 g

re
at

er
 

th
an

 +
/-

 1
0 

p
er

 c
en

t 

G
ra

nt
 p

la
nn

in
g,

 li
ai

so
n 

an
d 

re
po

rt
in

g 
11

,2
70

.0
0 

24
,8

21
.5

0 
 

E
st

im
at

e 
– 

st
ill

 to
 b

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
3,

36
0.

35
 

 
 

T
ot

al
 

12
0,

00
0.

00
 

12
1,

83
4.

25
 

 

Page 81



©
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 2
01

2.
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

 T
ea

m
. 

Im
ag

e 
co

py
rig

ht
 ©

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 g

ra
nt

-p
ay

in
g 

bo
di

es
, a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s,
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 a
nd

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 e
xp

la
in

s 
th

e 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

ite
d 

bo
dy

.  

w
w

w
.a

u
d

it
-c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
.g

o
v.

u
k 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ju

n
e 

20
12

Page 82



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

14 JUNE 2012 

 

SUBJECT: AC REPORTS REVIEW 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

COUNCILLOR ADRIAN JONES 

KEY DECISION? NO  
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1  In order to assist in effective corporate governance and fulfil statutory 
requirements, the Internal Audit Section of the Finance Department reviews 
management and service delivery arrangements within the Council as well as 
financial control systems. Work areas are selected for review on the basis of 
risks identified on the Corporate Risk Register and as assessed by Internal 
Audit in consultation with Chief Officers and Managers.  

 
1.2. This report summarises reviews undertaken by the Audit Commission for the 

period of April 2011 to February 2012, and details the action that Wirral 
Council, including Merseyside Pension Fund has subsequently taken to 
implement the recommendations within the associated reports.  

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 On 29 June 2005, the Finance and Corporate Management Select Committee 
resolved that it should receive an annual report detailing the results of the 
reviews undertaken by Internal Audit as to how the Council has responded to 
the Audit Commission Reports.  

 
2.2 A request was made by this Committee on 30 June 2010 that in-depth  

verification of a sample of recommendations be undertaken so as to provide 
assurance that appropriate action has been taken. 

 
2.3     The Financial Regulations (4.3.15) state that it is incumbent on Chief Officers   
           to ensure that the receipt and action taken in response to recommendations    
           within external audit reports, relating to services for which they are  
           responsible, are reported promptly to the appropriate committee. 
 
2.4   This report summarises the Audit Commission Reports completed during the 
           period of 1st April 2011 to 1st February 2012.  The specific areas that were 

covered as part of this review are identified in Appendix 1.  
 
2.5 A break down of Audit Commission Reports is annotated in Appendix 2.  On 

review of the Committee reports it was identified that: 

Agenda Item 10

Page 83



 
• Eleven Audit Commission reports had been reported to the relevant 
committees during the review period. 

 
• Three Audit Commission reports had been reported to more than one 
Committee.  The Table below identifies these reports; more detail on this can 
be found at Appendix 2. 
 

Number Audit Report Committee Committee Committee 
1 MPF Annual 

Governance 
Report 
September 
2011/12  

Corporate  
Governance 

Audit and Risk 
Management 

Pensions  

2  Annual 
Governance 
Report 
September 
2011/12  

Corporate  
Governance 

Audit and Risk 
Management 

N/A 

3  Progress 
Report March 
2011 
Financial 
Statements.   

Corporate  
Governance 

Audit and Risk 
Management 

N/A 

 
 

• After deducting these it was determined that eight Audit Commission Reports 
had been reported to the relevant Committees from the period of 1st April 
2011 to 1st February 2012. This total was also confirmed with the Audit 
Commission at the time of the review. 

 
• Eleven high priority recommendations were identified within the eight Audit 
Commission reports. Out of the eleven high priority recommendations two of 
the recommendations were the same and these related to the two Progress 
reports annotated in Appendix 2 (numbers 1 and 4 resulting in 9 high level 
priority recommendations) with the aim that the Council addresses these risks 
and improve systems in operation across the Council.    

 
2.6 Internal Audit selected the Annual Governance Report September 2011/12  

for review because this contained five high level recommendations, the most  
number of all of the reports. 

 
2.7 Audit did not select the two Progress Reports audits (Appendix 2, reference 

number 1 and  4 ) because the two high level recommendations in both 
reports are currently being reviewed as part of the IFRS restatement exercise. 
Internal Audit therefore did not want to duplicate the work carried out by the 
Audit Commission. 

 
2.8 The Merseyside Pension Fund Annual Governance Report (Please refer to 

Appendix 2 reference number 2) annotated two high level recommendations 

Page 84



to be implemented in June and September 2012.  Audit therefore decided not 
to review this report because the implementation dates annotated on the 
action plan are outside the time frame of the Internal Audit review period.  
However, Internal Audit will review the progress made on these high level 
recommendations at a later date. 

 
2.9 Since the audit review commenced two further Audit Commission reports 

have been published during March 2012 that bring the total for the year to ten 
audit reports; these will be followed up by Internal Audit at a later date 

 
2.10    Results identified that management have implemented or have been making  

progress on implementing the recommendations arising from all of these 
inspection reports and aim to fully implement all of the recommendations 
within a satisfactory timescale.   Should unforeseen issues arise during the 
course of implementation, assurances have been given to Internal Audit that 
the relevant Officers would notify the Audit Commission with immediate effect. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 Appropriate actions are not taken by officers and Members in response to the 
identification of risks to the achievement of the Council’s objectives. 

 
3.2 Potential failure of the Audit and Risk Management Committee to comply with 

best professional practice and thereby not function in an efficient and effective 
manner. 

 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options considered 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 Members of this Committee are consulted throughout the process of delivering 
the Internal Audit Plan and the content of this regular routine report. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to 
equality? 

 
  No because there is no relevance to equality. 
  
 

Page 85



10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1  That the report be noted and appropriate action be taken by the Members as 
deemed necessary. 

 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 To provide assurance to committees and members that responsible Officers 
are taking appropriate action for External Inspectorate Reports. 

 
13.2 To ensure that risks to the Council are managed effectively. 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Dave Garry 
  Chief Internal Auditor 
  telephone:  (0151) 666 3387 
  email:  davegarry@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES: 

Departments/External Organisations Consulted 

Audit Commission Reports Reported to Committee 

 

REFERENCE MATERIAL 

Committee Reports April 2011 to January 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Audit and Risk Management Committee 

 

 

Routine report presented  

annually to this 

Committee. 

Page 86



Appendix 1  

The Table below shows the Departments and external organisations that were contacted during the audit review. 

   Department/External Organisation 
Results from Consultation with the relevant 
Departments and Organisations   

 
1. 

 
Audit Commission 

A link was provided to the Wirral Intranet Site.  The Audit 
Commission was notified of the Follow up Review that was 
currently being undertaken by the Finance Department. 

  

        
 
2. 

 
Department for Adult Social Services 

Two reports were identified after consultation but did not 
relate to the Audit Commission. These will be followed up as 
part of the AGS work later in the year.   

        
 
3. 

 
Children and Young People Services 

Four reports provided which related to Ofsted.  Two of which 
related to Action Plans in relation to recent Ofsted 
Inspections undertaken within Fostering and Adoption 
Services. These reports have been reviewed accordingly 
and the findings included in the AGS exercise.   

        
4. Regeneration Housing and Planning None reported during that period.   
        
5. Finance One review which was referred to as part of the AC testing.   
        
6. Law, HR and AM Confirmation that there had been no external inspections 

during the period specified (April 11 to January 2012).   
        
 
7. 

 
Technical Services 

Two external reports had been identified (and currently 
being worked on) but have not yet been reported to the 
relevant Committees at the time of the review (but do not 
relate to the Audit Commission).   

        

P
age 87



Appendix 2  

The table below shows a break down of Audit Commission Reports that have been reported to the relevant Committees between 1st 

April 2011 and 1st February 2012. 

 

No Committee Title of Report  
 
(Click into columns for 
direct links to the 
reports) 

Date of 
Report 

Date 
Reported to 
Committee 

Total number of 
recommendations 

No. of High 
Recommendations 

1. Audit and 
Risk 
Management 
Committee 

Audit Commission 
Progress Report Audit 
2010/2011 

Mar-11 14 Apr 
2011 6.15 
pm 

6 - IFRS 2  

2. Audit and 
Risk 
Management 
Committee 

Audit Commission - 
Merseyside Pension 
Fund Annual 
Governance Report  
 

Sep-11 28 Sep 
2011 6.15 
pm 

2 2 

3. Audit and 
Risk 
Management 
Committee 

Audit Commission - 
Annual Governance 
Report Sept 2011 
 
 

Sep-11 28 Sep 
2011 6.15 
pm 

11 5 

4. Audit and 
Risk 
Management 
Committee 

Audit Commission - 
Progress Report 
September 2011 

Sep-11 28 Sep 
2011 6.15 
pm 

6-IFRS 2  

P
age 88



5. Audit and 
Risk 
Management 
Committee 

Audit Commission - 
Progress Report 
November 2011  

Nov-11 29 Nov 
2011 6.15 
pm 

Nil Nil 

6. Audit and 
Risk 
Management 
Committee 

Audit Commission - 
Progress Report - Audit 
and Risk Management 
Committee 
Update24012012 

Jan-12 1 Feb 
2012 6.15 
pm 

Nil Nil 

7. Audit and 
Risk 
Management 
Committee 

Audit Commission - 
Audit Plan 201112 - 
Wirral Council 

Jan-12 1 Feb 
2012 6.15 
pm 

Nil Nil 

8. Audit and 
Risk 
Management 
Committee 

Audit Commission - 
Merseyside Pension 
Fund Audit Plan 201112 

Dec-11 1 Feb 
2012 6.15 
pm 

Nil Nil 

 

 

9. Cabinet - 
Corporate 
Governance 
Monitoring 
Group 

PDF 351 KB  - audit 
Commission Progress 
report March 2011- 
Financial Statements 

Mar-11 Repeat 
Report. 
Please refer to 
point 6 

Repeat Report. 
Please refer to 
point 6 

Repeat Report. 
Please refer to point 
6. 

P
age 89



10. Cabinet - 
Corporate 
Governance 
Monitoring 
Group 

Audit Commission - MPF 
Annual Governance 
Report  

Sep-11 Repeat 
Report.  
Please refer to 
point 7. 

Repeat Report.  
Please refer to 
point 7. 

Repeat Report.  
Please refer to point 
7. 

11. Cabinet - 
Corporate 
Governance 
Monitoring 
Group 

Audit Commission - 
Annual Governance 
Report  
 
 

Sep-11 Repeat 
Report.  
Please refer to 
point 8. 

Repeat Report.  
Please refer to 
point 8. 

Repeat Report.  
Please refer to point 
8. 

12. Pensions 
Committee - 
repeated 

Audit Commission 
Annual Governance 
Report 2010/11  

Sep-11 Repeat report.  
Please refer to 
point 7. 

Repeat report.  
Please refer to 
point 7. 

Repeat report.  
Please refer to point 
7. 

 

P
age 90



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

14 JUNE 2012 

 

SUBJECT: ARMC SELF ASSESSMENT PROGRESS 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

COUNCILLOR ADRIAN JONES 

KEY DECISION ?   NO 
  
 
1.0  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 To comply with best professional practice the Audit and Risk Management 
 Committee is required to complete an annual evaluation of its role and 
 effectiveness as part of the systems of internal audit. 
 
1.2 The CIPFA publication ‘A Toolkit for Local Authority Audit Committees’ 
 recommends the use of a self assessment checklist to achieve this task. The 
 Chair completed the checklist and presented a report to this Committee on 
 the findings and recommended actions in March 2012. 
 
1.3 Attached at Appendix 1 is the Action Plan developed following the exercise 
 and identifying recommendations to improve the existing arrangements 
 and address any risks. This has been updated to identify the progress made 
 to implement the identified recommendations. 
 
2.0  BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 
 issued amended regulations in 2006, to the 2003 Accounts and Audit 
 Regulations – ‘The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) 
 Regulations 2006. 
 
2.2 One of the amended regulations impacts on the process for preparing 
 the Statement of Internal Control (SIC) which is subsumed within 
 the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and relates specifically to the 
 the systems of internal audit in operation. This is:- 
 

• Regulations require bodies to regularly review their systems of internal 
audit, and for the findings to be considered by a committee of the body, 
or by the body as a whole. 

 
2.3  Advice from CIPFA includes the assertion that the “systems of internal 
 audit” can be considered to include the role and effectiveness of the 
 Audit Committee. 

Agenda Item 11

Page 91



 
2.4  To assist Councils in this evaluation exercise CIPFA has provided a 
 self assessment checklist and recommends that this be completed 
 annually. 
 
2.5 The Chair completed the self assessment exercise in conjunction with Internal 
 Audit and presented a report and action plan to this Committee in March 2012 
 identifying the findings of the exercise and required actions. 
 
2.6. Attached at Appendix 1 is the Self Assessment Action Plan annotated to 
 indicate the progress that has been made to date to implement the 
 recommended actions. 
 
3.0  RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 Possible failure of the Audit and Risk Management Committee to comply with 
best professional practice and thereby not function in an efficient and effective 
manner. 

 
4.0  OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options considered. 
 
5.0  CONSULTATION 

5.1 Members of this Committee were consulted throughout the annual 
assessment and their views reflected in the report and action plan attached at 
Appendix 1. 

 
6.0  IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
7.0  RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
8.0  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to 
equality? 

 
 (a) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
10.0  CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
11.0  PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

Page 92



12.0  RECOMMENDATION 

12.1.  That the self assessment checklist be considered and approved. 
 
13.0  REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

13.1 To comply with best practice identified in the CIPFA publication ‘A Toolkit for 
Local Authority Audit Committees’. 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Mark P Niblock 
  Deputy Chief Internal Auditor 
  telephone:  0151 666 3432 
  email:   markniblock@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

Self Assessment Action Plan 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

CIPFA Publication ‘A Toolkit for Local Authority Audit Committees’ 
 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

 

Council Meeting  Date 

Audit and Risk Management Committee  

 

November 2010 

January 2011 

March 2011 

March 2012 

 

 

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Risk Management Committee – self assessment          1 

         ACTION PLAN                    Appendix 1.  
 
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – SELF ASSESSMENT 
 
Ref Recommendations Priority Suggested 

Officer 
responsible 

Agreed Planned 
action 
date 

Client comments 

R.1 Training should be provided to Members of the Audit 
and Risk Management Committee (ARMC) to enable 
them to operate effectively and ensure continued 
compliance with the Terms of Reference for the 
Committee.  The training should include: 
 
 
ARMC Terms of Reference 
 
Finance 
 
Risk Management (including risk registers) 
 
Accounting Standards and Policies 
 
Accounting Estimates 
 
Annual Accounts 
 
Code of Practice for Internal Audit 
 
Regulatory Regime (legal regime/ legislative requirements) 
 
Annual Governance Statement/Statement of Internal Control 
 
Internal Audit Planning 
 
 

High  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bill Norman 
 
Tom Sault 
 
Mike Lane 
 
Tom Sault 
 
Tom Sault 
 
Tom Sault 
 
Mark Niblock 
 
Bill Norman 
 
David Taylor-Smith 
 
Mark Niblock 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y 
 
Y 
 
Y 
 
Y 
 
Y 
 
Y 
 
Y 
 
Y 
 
Y 
 
Y 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
06/12  
 
07/12 
 
TBC 
 
07/12 
 
07/12 
 
07/12 
 
TBC 
 
TBC 
 
TBC 
 
TBC 
 
 
 

Specialist training to be 
provided to supplement 
AK training covering all 
areas identified.  
 
Delivery to be confirmed: 
 
 
BN to arrange 
 
TS to deliver  
 
Mike Lane to deliver 
 
TS to deliver 
 
TS to deliver 
 
TS to deliver 
 
Draft prepared 
 
BN to arrange delivery 
 
Draft prepared  
 
Draft  prepared 
 
 

P
age 95



Audit and Risk Management Committee – self assessment          2 

DRAFT ACTION PLAN 
 
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – SELF ASSESSMENT 
 
Ref Recommendations Priority Suggested Officer 

responsible 
Agreed Planned 

action 
date 

Client comments 

R.2 a) The Audit and Risk Management Committee 
Terms of Reference should be reviewed for continued 
compliance with the CIPFA guidance and current 
professional best practice, and this exercise should 
be undertaken periodically. 
 
b) The Terms of Reference should set out the 
frequency of meetings of the Committee. 
 

Medium Bill Norman/ 
Cllr Jim Crabtree 

Yes 
 
 
 
 
 
Yes 
 

31 May 
2012 

16/4/12 – agreed.  
Particularly relevant 
given issues facing 
Council. 
 
 
Agreed will action 

R.3 The authority, standing and profile of the Audit and 
Risk Management Committee should be reviewed to 
ensure that it is appropriate in the current 
environment.   

High Bill Norman/ 
Cllr Jim Crabtree 

Yes 30 Sept 
2012 

16/4/12 - to be 
considered as part 
of R.2 and R.4. 
 
Seniority of 
Members may be an 
issue and 
composition of the 
ARMC should be 
designed to 
enhance gravitas. 
 

R.4 Membership of the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee should be evaluated to ensure that it 
remains fit for purpose; this should include an 
assessment of the independence of individual 
Members. 

High Bill Norman Yes 30 Sept 
2012 

 

P
age 96



Audit and Risk Management Committee – self assessment          3 

DRAFT ACTION PLAN 
 
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – SELF ASSESSMENT 
 
Ref Recommendations Priority Suggested Officer 

responsible 
Agreed Planned 

action 
date 

Client comments 

R.5 A mechanism should be in place to ensure that all 
new Members of the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee are provided with an appropriate induction 
that is specific to this Committee. 

High Ian Coleman Y 30 June 
2012 

16/4/12 – discussed 
with Bill Norman.   
 
AK Induction 
training scheduled 
for June 2012. 
 

R.6 A system should be in operation to assess the skills 
and experience mix of all new Members of the Audit 
and Risk Management Committee during their 
induction and any identified gaps addressed through 
the provision of relevant training. 
 

High Ian Coleman Y 30 Sept 
2012 

 

R.7 An evaluation of the adequacy of the current 
schedule of Audit and Risk Management Committee 
meetings should be undertaken to assess its 
continued fitness for purpose.  This should include 
consideration of the Council’s business, governance 
and financial needs. 
 

Medium Bill Norman Yes 30 June 
2012 

16/4/12 – schedule 
being presented to 
Cabinet 16/4.  
Members can 
query.  Will present 
to ARMC for 
comment. 

R.8 Agenda papers for the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee meetings should be circulated in advance 
of meetings to allow adequate preparation by the 
Members. 
 

Medium Bill Norman 
Cllr Jim Crabtree 

Yes 30 June 
2012 

16/4/12 – agreed, 
will action. 
 
 
 
 

P
age 97



Audit and Risk Management Committee – self assessment          4 

R.9 All Members of the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee should be reminded to ensure that they 
attend all meetings and briefings of the Committee, 
and when they are unavailable, an appropriate 
deputy is nominated. 
 

Medium Bill Norman Yes 30 June 
2012 

16/4/12 – agreed 
will action 

R.10 Consideration should be given to reviewing the 
system that Members of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee utilise to request the 
attendance of appropriate officers at meetings. 

High Bill Norman Yes 30 June 
2012 

16/4/12 – Officers 
will be requested to 
attend as 
appropriate, not just 
the Chief Officers. 
 

R.11 Members of the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee should consider how the Council identifies 
and evaluates its risks and the role of the Committee 
in this process.  This might include requesting Chief 
Officers to personally present their departmental risk 
registers to Audit and Risk Management Committee 
periodically for consideration.  
 

High Ian Coleman Yes 31 Dec 
2012 

16/4/12 – discussed 
with Bill Norman.  
Sits better in 
Finance as risk 
function reports 
through Finance. 
 
Mike Lane to be 
consulted regarding 
implementation of 
system and training. 
 

R.12 A mechanism should be put in place to ensure that 
the Audit and Risk Management Committee Members 
are aware of topical legal and regulatory issues, for 
example by receiving relevant circulars. 

Medium Bill Norman Yes 30 Sept 
2012 

16/4/12 – will 
require input & 
support from 
relevant 
departments given 
breadth of subject 
matter. 
 
 

P
age 98



Audit and Risk Management Committee – self assessment          5 

R.13 The Audit and Risk Management Committee should 
regularly review the performance of the External 
Auditors.  Consideration should be given to the 
introduction of performance measures to facilitate 
this. 

High Ian Coleman 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Yes 30 Sept 
2012 

16/4/12 – discussed 
with Bill Norman.  
Should sit with Ian 
Coleman who was 
asked by CEO to 
set these up with 
the external 
auditors. 
 
 

R.14 The Chair (and spokespersons) of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee should be involved in the 
preparation and planning of agendas for the 
Committee.  

Medium Bill Norman Yes 30 Sept 
2012 

16/4/12 – need to 
also consult the 
spokesperson in 
each political party.  
Could be done via 
email. 
 
Will explore. 
 

 

P
age 99



P
age 100

T
his page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

14 JUNE 2012 

 
SUBJECT: REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY 

POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA) 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF LAW, HR AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 

KEY DECISION? NO 
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report summarises the use of covert surveillance by the Council between 17 
January 2012 and 1 June 2012.  

 
1.2 This report was requested in the work plan for the Committee. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) governs how public bodies 
use surveillance methods:  The Council may use covert surveillance for the purpose of 
preventing or detecting crime or preventing disorder. 

 
2.2 The origin of RIPA lies in the Human Rights Act 1998 which places restrictions on the 

extent to which public bodies may interfere with a person’s right to respect for his or 
her home and private life and correspondence during the course of an investigation 
into suspected criminal activities.  The provisions of RIPA ensure (in summary) that 
any such interferences are in accordance with the law and are necessary and 
proportionate (i.e. the seriousness of the suspected crime or disorder must outweigh 
any possible interferences with the personal privacy of the persons being investigated 
and of persons who associate with them). 

 
2.3 The Council’s Constitution authorises Directors to designate Heads of Service and 

Service Managers to authorise the use of covert surveillance in accordance with the 
procedures prescribed by RIPA. 

 
2.4 The Office of Surveillance Commissioners (OSC) is responsible for overseeing the 

operation of RIPA.  The OSC inspected the Council on 1 July 2009.  The outcome of 
that inspection was reported to the Committee on 23 September 2009.  The 
Committee approved amendments to the Council’s Policy and Guidance Document 
made in response to the Report. 

 
2.5 New Codes of Practice on covert surveillance have been published by the Home 

Office.  As from 1 April 2010 every Council should report quarterly to its Audit and Risk 
Management Committee on its use of RIPA.  The last such report was made to the 
Committee on1 February 2012. 

Agenda Item 12

Page 101



 
3.0 THE USE OF RIPA BY THE COUNCIL 
 
3.1 Between 17 January 2012 and 1 June 2012 the Council granted 4 authorisations for 

directed  covert surveillance. 
 
3.2 Two authorisations were granted to obtain evidence of serious offences of fly-tipping 

at a site in the Borough where the offences were occurring on a regular basis, causing 
environmental damage and requiring costly cleanup operations. 

 
3.3 Two authorisations were granted to obtain evidence of alleged anti-social behaviour.  

In the first case this was due to alleged harassment; to date the surveillance has 
recorded incidents that corroborate witness evidence.  In the second case, the 
surveillance was authorised to obtain evidence of breach of an Anti-Social Behaviour 
Order.  Evidence has been secured of multiple breaches which will shortly lead to the 
arrest of the offender. 

 
4.0 CHANGES IN LEGISLATION 
 
4.1 The Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 has now been enacted.  When it comes into 

force the following changes in the law will affect local authorities. 
 

• Magistrate's approval will be required for local authority use of RIPA and will be 
in addition to the authorisation needed from a senior officer and the more general 
oversight by elected councillors. 

 
• Use of RIPA to authorise directed surveillance will be confined to cases where 

the offence under investigation carries a maximum custodial sentence of six 
months or more except in relation to underage sales of alcohol and tobacco, 
where the threshold will not apply. 

 
5.0 TRAINING 
 
5.1 Ibrahim Hasan will be providing on 4 September 2012 a full days training to officers on 

the new legislation in Wallasey Town Hall.  He is one of the leading authorities on 
RIPA. 

 
6. INSPECTION BY THE OFFICE OF SURVEILLANCE COMMISSIONER (OSC) 
 
6.1 OSC has announced that Sir David Clarke, Assistant Surveillance Commissioner, will 

visit the Council on 8 June 2012 in order to conduct an inspection of the Council’s use 
of covert surveillance. 

 
7.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

7.1 Less effective prosecution of instances of anti social behaviour when the use of covert 
surveillance by local authorities is curtailed by the new legislation. 

 
8.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

8.1 None. 
 

Page 102



9.0 CONSULTATION  

9.1 None. 
 
10.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

10.1 None. 
 
11.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

11.1 None at present. 
 
12.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

12.1 The Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 will require the Council to review its procedures 
for authorising directed surveillance, access to communications data and the use of 
covert human intelligence sources. 

 
12.2 Pending the implementation of the new legislation the Council’s current policy on the 

use of RIPA still applies. 
 
13.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
14.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

14.1 None. 
 
15.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

15.1 See paragraph 4. 
 
16.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

16.1 That members note the contents of the report on the use of covert surveillance. 
 
17.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

17.1 The Home Office Code of Practice on covert surveillance requires every Council to 
report quarterly on its use of RIPA. 

 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Colin Hughes 
  Group Solicitor 
  telephone:  (0151 691 8502) 
  email:   colinhughes@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
 
APPENDICES 

None. 

Page 103



 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
Authorisations for directed surveillance - exempt from publication because they relate to 
individuals and are the subject of continuing investigations into alleged criminal behaviour. 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 
Council Meeting  Date 

Reports to the Audit & Risk Management 
Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report to the Cabinet 

23 September 2009 
30 June 2010 
28 September 2010 
22 November 2010 
28 March 2011 
30 June 2011 
28 September 2011 
1 February 2012 
 
26 November 2010 

 

Page 104


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Internal Audit Update
	5 Internal Audit Annual Report
	Appendix

	6 Corporate Risk and Insurance Management
	8 Audit Commission Progress Report - Action Areas
	9 Audit Commission - Grant Claims and Returns Report
	10 Summary of Reviews undertaken by Audit Commission
	11 Self Assessment Progress Report
	Appendix

	12 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) - Quarterly Update

